DIRECTORS’ REPORT

To
The Members,

The Directors of your Company are pleased to present the Fifth Annual Report
together with the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the
Financial Year ended 318 March, 2018.

1. FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
The working results of the Company for the year under review are as

under:
(Rupees 11 Crores)

Year ended | Year ended

7 31.03.2018 | 31.03.2017
(A) PROFITABILITY
1 _1Gross Total Revenue 269.48 198.21
2 Total Expenses 371.89 310.95
3 Exceptional /Extra-ordinary items - -
4 Profit /{l.oss) belore Tax (102.41) (112.74)
5] Profit/ (Loss) after Tax (102.41) (112.74)
6 Total Comprehensive Income (102,29) (112.71)
(B) ASSETS & LIABILITIES
1 Non Current Assets 921.86 806.22
2 Current Assets 67.40 70.23
3 Total Assets (1+2) 989.26 876.44
4 Equity Share Capital 427.5 427.5
5 Other Equity (279.61) (177.32)
o Non Current Liabilities 525.50 480.35
7 Current Liabilities 315.88 145.92
8 Total Equity &  Liabilities 989.26 876.44

(4+5+6+7)

2. OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE

The revenue for the Financial Year 2017-18 was Rs. 209 Crores which
was higher by 36% over previous year. The Company's earnings before
interest, taxes, Depreciation and amortization (EBIDTA) stood at a loss of
Rs. 6.49 Crores as compared to the loss of Rs. 21.14 Crores in the
previous year. The net loss after taxation and exceptional items was
Rs, 102.41 Crores in the current {inancial year. Your Directors anticipate
a positive EBIDTA in the next vear.
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Jaypee Hospital, Noida established itself as a major Transplant Centre by
performing 208 Transplants which includes 148 Kidney Transplants and
60 Liver Transplants. The Key specialties such as Cardiac, Orthopedics,
Renal Sciences and Oncology contributed about 50% of the Company’s
total revenue in the Financial Year 2017-18.

During the period under review, Jaypee Hospital, Noida conducted 382
health talks & camps and 51 Continuing Medical Education (CME)
programmes across the country The number of OPDs at Jaypee
Hospital, Noida increased by 26% from 1,35,000 to 1,70,000.The
International revenue increased by 65% from Rs. 43 Crore to Rs. 71
Crore over the previous year.

During the year under review, Chitta unit of your Company bccame
operational and IPD operations have been commenced from June, 2017.

DIVIDEND

Your Directors express their inability to recommend any dividend for the
Financial Year 2017-18 due to non-availability of profits.

RESERVES

During the year under review no amount has been transferred to
reserves due to non-availability of profits.

SHARE CAPITAL

During the year under review, there was no change in Authorized and
Paid-up Share Capital of the Company. As at 31st March, 2018, the
Authorized Share Capital is Rs. 600,00,00,000/- (Rupees Six Hundred
Crore) divided into 60,00,00,000 (Sixty Crore) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/-
(Rupees Ten) each.

Paid-up Equity Share Capital of the Company is Rs. 427,50,00,000/-
(Four Hundred Twenty Seven Crore Fifty Lac) divided into 42,75,00,000
(Forty Two Crore 3eventy Five Lac) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees
Ten) each.

SUBSIDIARIES/ JOINT VENTURES/ ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

The Company does not have any Subsidiary Companies within the
meaning of Section 2(87) of the Companies Act, 2013, Associate
Company in terms of Section 2(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and also
does not have any Joint Venture Company.



7.1

7.2

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

In terms of provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Articles of
Association of the Company, Shri Manoj Gaur, Director of the Company,
retire by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and being
eligible has offered himself for re-appointment.

During the year under review following changes occurred in the offices of
Directors/KMP’s of the Company:

SI. Name Designation Date of Date of
No. Appointment | Resignation
1. | Ms. Malvika Mall | 0MPaDY 30.07.2015 | 10.06.2017
Secretary
2. Shri Atanu Sen Director 28.03.2015 13.09.2017
3. | Ms. Divya Yaday | SOmPany 12.12.2017 | -
Secretary

Declaration by Independent Directors

The Company has received necessary declaration from Independent
Director under Section 149(7} of the Companies Act, 2013 confirming
that he meets the criteria of independence laid down under Section
149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013.

Performance Evaluation

In terms of the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, performance
evaluation of the Board, its Committees and individual Directors
including the Independent Directors was carried out by the Board of
Directors on the criteria and framework adopted by the Board.

The Board of Directors evaluated the performance of the Board, as a
whole and of its Committees after seeking inputs from the Directors and
from the members of the Committee(s) respectively, on the composition
and structure, effectiveness of processes, information and functioning,
etc. Further, the Board (excluding the Director being evaluated)
evaluated the performance of individual directors on criteria such as
participation/ contribution at the Board/Committee Mectings; general
understanding of the Company’s business dynamics etc. The Board
noted satisfactory performance of the Directors and its Committees.

In addition to the criteria of evaluation for all Directors, which is
common for evaluation of both Independent and Non- executive



Directors, an Independent Director was also evaluated on parameters
including, exercise of objective independent judgment in the best interest
of Company; ability to contribute and monitor corporate governance
practice; and adherence to the code of conduct by Iindependent Directors.
The evaluation for the year under Report has been completed.

MEETINGS OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors met five times during the Financial Year 2017-18
on 271 May, 2017, 30t June, 2017, 18" September, 2017,
12 December, 2017 and 27% March, 2018.

The intervening gap between the two Board Meetings did not exceed 120
days as prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013.

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

To provide detailed and necessary assistance in the Company’s matters,
the Board has constituted committees. The Board has a defined a set of
guidelines and an established framework for conducting the meetings of
the said Committees. These guidelines seek to systematize the decision
making process at the meetings in an informed and efficient manner.

Audit Committee
A. Constitution

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors of the Company
comprises of Shri Sham Lal Mohan as Chairman; Shri Sunny Gaur
and Smt. Rekha Dixit as Members is in conformance with the
requirements of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013. All the
members of the Committee have adequate knowledge of financial and
accounting matters.

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors met four times during
the Financial Year 2017-18 on 27% May, 2017, 18" September, 2017,
121 December, 2017 and 271 March, 2018,

B. Terms of Reference
Role of the Audit Committee, inter alia, includes the following:
i. Oversight of the Company’s financial reporting process and the

disclosure of its financial information to ensure that the {inancial
statement is correct, sufficient and credible;



ii.

11,

v,

vi.

vii.

viil.

IX.

xi.

Xii.

XI1i1.

xiv.

XV.

xvi.

Recommendation for appointment, remunecration and terms of

appointment of auditors of the Company;

Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other scrvices

rendered by the statutory auditors,

Reviewing, with the management, the annual financial statements

and auditors’ report thereon before submission to the Board for

approval, with particular reference to:

a) Matters required to be included in the Director’s
Responsibility Statement to be included in the Board’s report
in terms of clause (¢) of sub-section 3 of Section 134 of the
Act.

b) Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and
reasons for the same.

¢) Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the
exercise of judgment by management.

d) Significant adjustments made in the financial statements
arising out of audit findings.

e] Disclosure of any Related Party Transactions.

fy Qualifications in the draft audit report.

Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly financial

statements before submission to the Board for approval;

Review and monitor the auditor’s independence and performance

and effectiveness of audit process;

Examination of Financial Statements and the Auditors’ Report

thereon;

Approval any subsequent modification of transactions of the

company with related parties;

Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;

Valuation of undertakings or assets of the company, wherever it

1S necessary;

Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management

systems;

Establish a vigil mechanism for directors and employees to report

genuine concerns in such manner as may be prescribed;

Formulating the scope, functioning, periodicity and methodology

for conducting the internal audit;

Discussion with internal auditors of any significant findings and

follow-up thereon;

Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences,

about the nature and scope of audit as well as post audit

discussion to ascertain any area of concern;

Reviewing the following information:

a) Statement of significant Related Party Transactions (as
defined by the Audit Committee), submitted by management;

b) Internal audit reports relating to internal control weaknesses;
and



xvii. Carrying out any other function as mentioned in terms of
reference of the audit committee.

II. Nomination and Remuneration Committee

A. Constitution

The constitution of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee
comprising of Shri Sham Lal Mohan as Chairman; Smt. Rekha Dixit
and Shri G.P. Gaur as Members is in conformance with the
requirements of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board of
Directors met two times during the Financial Year 2017-18 on
30t June, 2017, and 12 December, 2017.

B. Terms of Reference

Role of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, inter alia,
includes the following:

1. Identify persons who are qualified to become directors or senior
management employees and recommend to the Board their
appointment/ removal,

ii. Evaluate every Director’s performance;

iii. Formulate criteria for determining qualifications, positive
attributes and independence of a Director;

iv. Recommend to the Board a policy relating to remuneration for the
Directors, KMPs & other employees;

v. To approve the extension or continuation of terms of appointment
of Independent Directors on the basis of their performance
evaluation;

vi. To recommend/review remuneration of the Managing Director(s)
and Whole-time Director(s) based on their performance and
defined assessment criteria;

vii. Chairman of the Committee or any member authorised by him to
attend all General Meetings of the Company;

viii.To perform such other functions as may be necessary or
appropriate for the performance of its duties.

C. Nomination & Remuneration Policy

In terms of Section 178(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
Rules framed thereunder, the Board on recommendation of
Nomination and Remuneration Committee adopted a Nomination &
Remuneration Policy which, inter-alia, enumerates Directors’



III.

10.

appointment and remuneration including criteria for determining
qualifications, positive attributes, independence of a Director and
other matters as provided therein. The said ‘Nomination and
Remuneration Policy’ is annexed herewith as Annexure-I to this
Report.

Finance Committee

The Finance Committee comprises of Smt. Rekha Dixit as Chairperson;
Shri Sunny Gaur and Shri Sham Lal Mohan as Members. Role of the
Finance Committee, inter-alia, includes to facilitate the availing of funds
requirement from Banks/Financial Institutions /[Companies/other
persons/firms and body corporate within the overall limit sanctioned by
the Shareholders.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013,
your Directors confirm that:

a) in the preparation of the annual accounts for the Financial Year
ended 31st March, 2018, the applicable accounting standards read
with requirements set out under Schedule III to the Act, have been
followed and there are no material departures from the same;

b) the Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied
them consistently and made judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state
ol affairs of the Company for the Financial Year ended 31% March,
2018 and the profit and loss of the Company for the year ended on
that date;

c) the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of
the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other
irregularities; ‘ '

d) the Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a 'going concern'
basis;

e) the Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with
the provisions of all applicable laws and such systems were adequate
and operating effectively and the same are being strengthened on
continuous basis from time to time.



11.

12.

13.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS

During the year under review, your Company has not given any loans,
guarantees or provided any security or made any investment in terms of
the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Audit Committee and the Board of Directors have approved the
Related Party Transactions Policy and all the related party transactions
have been entered in accordance thereof and were in the ordinary course
of business and at arm’s length. Form AOC- 2, pursuant to Section
134(3)(h) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8(2) of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, is annexed as Annexure-II to this
Report.

Disclosure of transactions with related parties for which omnibus
approval was granted and which are required to be disclosed in terms of
IndAS 24 is sct out in Note No. 37 of the Financial Statements.

AUDITORS’ AND AUDITORS’ REPORT

Statutory Auditors

M/s. Awatar & Co. (Firm Registration No. 000726N), Chartered
Accountants were appointed as Statutory Auditors at the second Annual
General Meeting of the Company for a term of five consecutive years and
shall hold office till the conclusion of 7t Annual General Mectling to be
held in the year 2020 subject to ratification of their appointment at every
AGM.

The Board, on recommendation of the Audit Committee ratified the
appointment of M/s. Awatar & Co. (Firm Registration No. 000726N), as
Statutory Auditors of the Company for the Financial Year 2018-19 in
terms of Section 139(2) of the Companies Act, 2013.

M/s. Awatar & Co. have signified their willingness to accept ratification
of their appointment and have further have confirmed their eligibility
under the Companies Act, 2013 and that they are not disqualified.

The Notes to financial statements referred to in the Auditors' Report are
self-explanatory and therefore do not require any further comments. The
Auditors’ Report on financial statements for the Financial Year ended
31st March, 2018, does not contain any qualification, reservation or
adverse remark.

During the year under Report, no frauds were reported by the Auditors
under seccond proviso to Section 143 (12) of the Companies Act, 2013.



II,

14,

15.

16.

17.

Secretarial Auditors

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013
read with Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, M/s Anjali Yadav & Associates,
Practicing Company Secretary, were appointed as Secretarial Auditor
of the Company to conduct Secretarial Audit for the Financial Ycar

2017-18.

The Secretarial Audit Report for the Financial Year ended 31st March,
2018 is enclosed hercwith as ANNEXURE-III to this Report. The
Secretarial Audit Report does not contain any qualification, reservation
or adverse remark.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL

The Company has in place an adequate internal financial control system
over financial reporting and such internal financial controls were
operating effectively during the year under review, for ensuring orderly
and efficient conduct of the business of the Company in all material

respects.
RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company has put in place a mechanism to identify, assess, monitor
and mitigate various risks associated with the business. Risks are
analyzed and corrective actions are taken for managing/mitigating them.
Major risks identified are systematically discussed at the meeting of the
Audit Committee and Board of Directors of the Company has formally
framed the Risk Management Policy to identily and assess the key risk
areas, monitor and report compliance and effectiveness of the policies

and procedures.
FIXED DEPOSITS

The Company has ncither invited, nor accepted or renewed any fixed
deposit during the period under Report in terms of Section 73 of the
Companies Act, 2013 recad with the Companies (Acceptance of Deposit)
Rules, 2014.

VIGIL MECHANISM
Pursuant to the provisions of section 177(9) & (10) of the Companies Act,

2013, a Vigil Mechanism for Directors and employees has been
established {o report their genuine concerns. The Vigil Mechanism Policy



18.

19.

20.

21.

22,

provides a mechanism for directors and employees of the Company to
approach Vigilance Officer/Chairman of the Audit Committee including
but not limited to events like breach of Company’s code of conduct,
business integrity & ethics, willul negligence, fraud or any other
malpractices.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Since the Company does not fall within the ambit of the provision of
Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company is not required to
formulate a policy on Corporate Social Responsibility during the year
under review.

EXTRACTS OF THE ANNUAL RETURN

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 134 (3) (a) of the Companies Act,
2013, the extract of Annual Return of the Company in Form No. MGT-9
for the Financial Year ended on 315t March, 2018 is enclosed herewith as
ANNEXURE-IV to this Report.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION,
FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

The information on conservation of energy, technology absorption and
foreign exchange earnings and outgo in terms of the provisions of Section
134 (3) (m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is enclosed as ANNEXURE-V to this

Report.
PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES AND RELATED DISCLOSURES

In terms of Section 197({12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rules
S (2) and 5(3} of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, a statement showing names and
other particulars of the employees drawing remuneration in excess of the
prescribed limit is annexed as Annexure-VI to this Report.

MATERIAL CHANGES & COMMITMENTS AFFECTING FINANCIAL
POSITION OF THE COMPANY

There have been no material changes and commitments, affecting the
financial position of the Company which have occurred between the end
of the Financial Year of the Company to which the financial statements
relate and the date of this Report.



23. DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARRASSMENT OF WOMEN AT
WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL)} ACT,

2013

An Internal Complaints Committee (ICC) has been set up by the
Company to redress complaints received regarding sexual harassment.
No such complaints were received from any cmployee during the year
under review.

24, GENERAL

Your Directors state that no disclosure or reporting is required in respect
of the following items as there were no transactions on these items

entered during the year under review:

A. Issue of equity shares with differential rights as to dividend, voting or
otherwise.

B. Issue of shares (including swcat equity shares) to employees of the
Company under any scheme.

C. The Company has not purchased its own shares.

D. No significant or material orders were passed by the Regulators or
Courts or Tribunals which would impact the going concern status
and Company’s operations in {uture.

E. No frauds were reported to the Audit Committee/Board of directors.

25. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Your Directors would like to express their sincere appreciation for the
assistance and co-operation received from the Financial Institutions,
Banks, Government authorities, Customers, Vendors and Members
during the year under review. Your Directors also wish to place on record
their deep appreciation for the committed efforts made by the Company's
executives, staff and workers.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directox;s.,r.m

g\-/’q'v/ v f
Place: Noida (Manoj Gaur)
Date: 04th May, 2018 {Chairman)

DIN No.: 00008480



ANNEXURE -1
NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY

Introduction:

A transparent, fair and reasonable process for determining the appropriate
remuneration at all levels of the Company is required to ensure that
Shareholders remain informed and confident in the management of the
Company. To harmonize the aspirations of human resources consistent with
the goals of the Company and in terms of the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013, as amended from time to time this policy on nomination and
remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management
has been formulate by the Committee and approved by the Board of Directors.
The objective and purpose of this policy are:

i. To lay down criteria and terms and conditions with regard to identifying
persons who are qualified to become Directors (Executive and Non-
Executive) and persons who may be appointed in Senior Management, Key
Managerial Personnel and other employees and to determine their
remuneration.

ii, To provide them reward linked directly to their effort, performance,
dedication and achievement relating to the Company's operations.

i, To retain, motivate and promote talent and to ensure long term
sustainability of talented managerial persons and create competitive
advantage. In the context of the aforesaid criteria the following policy has
been formulated by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and
adopted by the Board of Directors at its meeting held on 31st January,
2015.

Definitions:

i. "Board" means Board of Directors of the Company.

ii. "Directors" means Directors of the Company.

1. "Committee" means Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the
Company as constituted or reconstituted by the Board.

iv. "Company" means Jaypee Healthcare Limited.

v. "Independent Director" mecans a Director referred to in Section 149 (6) of
the Companies Act, 2013.

vi. "Key Managerial Personnel" (KMP} means -

a. Chiel Executive Officer or Managing Director;
b. Whole-time Director;



Chief Financial Officer;

Company Secretary;

e. Such other officers as may be prescribed under the applicable statutory
provisions/ regulations.

oo

vii. "Senior Management" means personnel of the company who are members
of its core management team excluding Board of Directors comprising all
member of management one level below the executive directors, including
the functional heads. Unless the context otherwise requires, words and
expressions used in this policy and not defined herein but defined in the
Companies Act, 2013 as may be amended from time to time shall have the
meaning respectively assigned to then therein.

Applicability:
The Policy is applicable to:

1. Directors {Executive and Non Executive)
ii. Key Managerial Personnel

iii. Senior Management Personnel

iv. Other employees

General:

Part-A covers the matters to be dealt with and recommended by the Committee
to the Board.

Part-B covers the appointment and nomination and;
Part-C covers remuneration and perquisites etc.

The key features of this Company's Policy shall be included in the Board's
Report.

PART-A

MATTERS TO BE DEALT WITH, PERUSED AND RECCMMENDED TO THE
BOARD BY THE NOMINATION AND REMUNERTAION COMMITTEE

The Committee shall:

i. Formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and
independence of a director.



ii. Identify persons who are qualified to become Director and persons who may
be appointed in Key Managerial and Senior Management positions in
accordance with the criteria laid down in this policy.

iii. Recommend to the Board, appointment and removal of Director, KMP and
Senior Management Personnel.

PART-B

POLICY RELATING TO APPOINTMENT AND REMOVAL OF DIRECTOR,
KMP, SENIOR MANAGEMENT:

Appointment criteria and qualifications:

1. The Committee shall identify and ascertain the integrity, qualification,
expertise and experience of the person for appointment as Director, KMP or
at senior Management level and recommend to the Board his/her
appointment.

1. A person should possess adequate qualifications, expertise and experiences
for the position he/she is considered for appointment. The Committee has
discretion to decide whether qualification, expertise and experience
possessed by a person is sufficient/satisfactory for the concerned position.

iii. The Company shall not appoint or continue the employment of any person
as Managing Director/Whole-time Director who has not attained age of
twenty one years and has attained the age of seventy years. Provided that
the term of the person holding this position may be extended beyond the
age of seventy years with the approval of the shareholders by passing a
special resolution based on the explanatory statement annexed to the
notice for such motion indicating the justification for extension of
appointment beyond seventy years. The person for the position of
Director/Managing Director/whole-time Director should not be disqualified
under Section 164 and 196 read with Schedule V of the Companies Act,
2013 and the rules made there under.

Term/Tenure:

i. Managing Director/Whole-time Director:
The Company shall appoint or re-appoint any person as its Managing
Director or Whole-time Director for a term not exceeding five years at a

time. No re-appointment shall be made ecarlier than one year before the
expiry of term.,



ii.

iii.

iv.

Independent Director:

a) An Independent Director shall hold office for a term up to five
consecutive years on the Board of the Company and will be eligible for
re-appointment on passing of a special resolution by the Company and
disclosure of such appointment in the Board's report.

) No Independent Director shall hold office for more than two consecutive
terms, but such Independent Director shall be eligible for appointment
after the expiry of three years of ceasing to become an Independent
Director. Provided that an Independent Director shall not, during said
period of three years, be appointed in or be associated with the
Company in any other capacity, either directly or indirectly.

¢) The Company will enter into a letter of engagement with Independent
Directors. This letter of engagement will set out the terms and
conditions of the engagement and the performance expectations for the
role and remuneration package of that director. The said terms and
conditions must be approved by the Board.

d) At the time of appointment of Independent Director it should be
ensured that number of Boards on which such Independent Director
serves Is restricted to seven listed companies as an Independent
Director and three listed companies as an Independent Director in case
such person is serving as a Whole-time Director of a Listed Company.

Removal;:

Due to reasons of any disqualification mentioned in the Companies Act,
2013 rules made there under or under any other applicable Act, rules and
regulations, the Committee may recommend, to the Board with reasons
recorded in writing, removal of Director, KMP or Senior Management
Personnel subject to the provisions and compliance of the said Act, rules
and regulations.

Retirement:

The of Director, KMP or Senior Management Personnel shall retire as per
the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the prevailing
policy of the Company. The Board will have the discretion to retain the of
Director, KMP or Senior Management Personnel in the same
position/remuneration or otherwisc even after attaining the retirement age,
for the benefit of the Company.



V.

Training:

The Company shall provide suitable training to Independent Directors to
familiarize them with the company their roles, rights, responsibilities in the
Company, nature of the industry inn which the Company operates, business
model of the Company etc.

PART-C

POLICY RELATING TO THE REMUNERATION FOR THE MANAGING
DIRECTOR, WHOLE-TIME DIRECTOR, KMP, SENIOR MANAGEMENT AND

OTHER EMPLOYEES:

General:

1i.

11i.

1v.

The remuneration/compensation/commission etc. to the Managing
director/Whole-time Director, KMP and Senior Management Personnel will
be determined by the Committee and recommended to the Board for
approval. The remuneration/compensation/commission etc. shall be
subject to the prior/post approval of the shareholders of the Company and
Central Government, wherever required.

The remuneration and commission to be paid to the Managing
Director/Whole-time Director shall be in accordance with the
percentage/slabs/conditions laid down in the Articles of Association of the
Company and as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules
made thereunder.

Increments to the existing remuneration/compensation structure may be
recommended by the Committee to the Board which should be within the
slabs approved by the Sharecholders in the case of Managing
Direcctor/Whole-time Director.

Where any insurance is taken by the Company on behalf of its Managing
Director/Whole-time Director, Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial
Officer, the Company Secretary and any other employees for indemnifying
them against any liability, the premium paid on such insurance shall not
be treated as part of the remuneration payable to any such personnel.
Provided that if such person is proved to be guilty, the premium paid on
such insurance shall be treated as part of the remuneration.



Remuneration to Managing director/Whole-time Director, KMP and Senior
Management Personnel:

i.

1ii.

Fixed Pay:

The Managing director/Whole-time Director, KMP and Senior Management
Personnel shall be eligible for a monthly remuneration as may be approved
by the Board on the recommendation of the Committee. The breakup of the
pay scale and quantum of perquisites including, employer's contribution to
P.F, pension scheme, medical expenses, club fees etc. shall be decided and
approved by the Board on the recommendations of the Committee and
approved by the Sharcholders and Central Government, wherever required.

Minimum Remuneration:

If, in any financial year, the Company has no profits or its profits are
inadequate, the Company shall pay remuneration to 1its Managing
Director/Whole-time Director in accordance with the provisions of Schedule
V of the Companies Act, 2013 and if it is not able to comply with such
provisions, with the previous approval of the Central Government.

Provisions for excess remuneration:

If any Managing Director/Whole-time Director draws or receives, directly or
indirectly by way of remuneration any such sums in excess of the limits
prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 or without prior sanction of the
Central Government, where required, he/she shall refund such sums to the
Company and until such sum is refunded, hold it in trust for the Company.
The Company shall not waive recovery of such sum refundable to it unless
permitted by the Central Government.

Remuneration to Non Executive /Independent Director:

i.

ii.

Remuneration/Commission:

The remuneration/commission shall be fixed as per the slabs and
conditions mentioned in the Articles of Association of the Company and the
Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made there under.

Sitting Fees:

The Non-Executive/Independent Director may receive remuneration by way
of fees for attending meetings of Board or Committee thereof. Provided that
the amount of such fees shall not exceed Rs. One (1) Lakh per meeting of
the Board or Committee or such amount as may be prescribed by the
Central Government from time to time. The sitting fees for Independent



Directors and Women Directors shall not be less than the sitting fee
payable to other directors.

iii. Stock Options:

An Independent Director shall not be entitled to any stock option of the
Company.

Remuneration to other Employees:

Other Employees of the company shall be paid remunecration as per the
Company's HR policies. The breakup of the pay scale and quantum of
perquisites including employer's contribution to PF, pension scheme, medical
expenses, club fees elc. shall be as per the company's HR policy.



ANNEXURE - 11
FORM - AOC 2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act
and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by
the company with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of
the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arms length transactions under
third proviso thereto. '

A) Details of Contracts or Arrangements or Transactions not at Arm’s
Length Basis -

S.No. Particulars Details

a) Name(s) of the related party and nature N.A.
of relationship

b) Nature of N.A.
Contracts/Arrangements/Transactions

c) Duration of the  Contracts / N.A.
Arrangements/ Transactions

d) Salient terms of the Contracts or N.A.
Arrangements or Transactions
including the value, if any

e} Justification for entering into such N.A.
Contracts or Arrangements or
Transactions

f) Date(s) of approval by the Board N.A.

) Amount paid as advances, i any: N.A.

h) Date on which the special resolution N.A.

was passed in General Meeting as
required under first proviso to section
188




B) Details of Material Contracts or Arrangement or Transactions at
Arm’s Length Basis —

S.No. Particulars Details

a} Name(s) of the related party and nature of N.A.
relationship

b) Nature of N.A.
Contracts/Arrangements/Transactions

c) Duration of the Contracts / Arrangements N.A.
/ Transactions

d) Salient terms of the Contracts or N.A,
Arrangements or Transactions including
the value, if any:

e) Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any: N.A.

f) Amount paid as advances, if any: N.A.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Place: Noida
Date: 04th May, 2018

fnr]
(Manoj Gaur)
(Chairman)

DIN No.: 00008480




Annexure-III

Form No. MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31T MARCH, 2018
[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 9 of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel} Rules,
2014]

To

The Members

Jaypee Healthcare Limited
Sector-128

Noida

Uttar Pradesh — 201304

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable
statutory provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices by JAYPEE
HEALTHCARE LIMITED (CIN: U85191UP2012PLC053358) (“the Company”).
Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable
basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and
expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms
and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the
information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized
representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that
in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial
year ended on 31st March, 2018 complied with the statutory provisions listed
hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and
compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the
reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed
and other records maintained by the Company for the {inancial year ended on
31st March, 2018 according to the provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) and the Rules made there under;

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ("SCRA”) and the Rules
made there under - (Not applicable on the Company};



(vi)

The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed
thereunder-

Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations
made under that Act to the extent applicable to Overseas Direct
Investment (ODI])-(Not applicable on the Company)

The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities
and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 ("SEBI Act”):- (Not applicable on
the Company)

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial
Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011

(b)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India {Prohibition of Insider
Trading) Regulations, 2015

{c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2009

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India {(Employee Stock
Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines,
1999

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of
Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008

(1) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue
and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the
Companies Act and dealing with client

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity
Shares) Regulations, 2009

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of
Securities) Regulations, 1998

(i) The Seccurities and Exchange Board of India {Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 2015

We further report that after considering the compliance system prevailing
in the Company, and after carrying out test checks of the relevant
records and documents maintained by the Company, it has complied



with the following other laws that are applicable specifically to the
Company:

(a) Clinical Establishments (Registration and Regulation) Act, 2010

(b) Indian Medical Council Act, 1956 and Rules and Regulations made
thereunder

(c) The Dentists Act, 1948 and Rules and Regulations made thereunder

(d) Drugs and Cosmetics Act, 1940 and subsequent Amendments thereof

(e} Pharmacy Act, 1948 and Rules and Regulations made thereunder

{f) Narcotics and Psychotropic Substances Act, 1985

(g} Drugs and Magic Remedies (Objectionable) Advertisements Act, 1954

(h) The Pre-Natal Diagnostic Techniques (Regulations and Prevention) of
Misuse Act, 1994 and Rules and Regulations made thereunder

(i Transplantation of Human Organ Act, 1994 and Rules and
Regulations made thereunder

(j) Birth And Death And Marriage Registration Act, 1886 and Rules and
Regulations made thereunder

(k) Registration of Birth and Deaths Act, 1969 and Rules and
Regulations made thereunder

() The Epidemic Disease Act, 1897

(m) Biomedical Waste Management Handling Rules, 2016 and
subsequent Amendments thereof

(n) Indian Boilers Act, 1923 and Rules and Regulations made thereunder

(0) Gas Cylinder Rules, 2004 and Rules and Regulations made
thereunder

(P) The Radiation Surveillance Procedures for the Medical Application of
Radiation, 1989 and Rules and Regulations made thereunder

(Q) Vaccination Act, 1880 and subsequent Amendments thereof

and all other Labour Laws, Rules and Regulations applicable to the
Company.

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of
India,

During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions
of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above,
subject to the following observations;

The Company has not filed the Form MGT-14 towards appointment of
Internal Auditor as required under Section 117 read with Rule 8 of
Companies (Meeting of Boards and its powers) Rules, 2014.



2. The Company has not filed the Form MGT-14 towards appointment of
Company Secretary as required under Section 117 read with Rule 8 of
Companies (Meeting of Boards and its powers) Rules, 2014.

3. The Company has not filed Two (2) Form CHG-1 towards creation of
charge in favour of security trustee namely Vistra ITCL (India) Limited.

4. The Company has not filed Form CRA-2 towards appointment of Cost
Auditor as required under Section 148(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read
with Rule 6(2) and 6 (3} of the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules,
2014.

We further report that:

Compliance of applicable financial laws including Direct and Indirect Tax laws
by the Company has not been reviewed in this Audit and the same has been
subject to review by the Statutory Auditors and others designated
professionals.

Based on the information provided by the Company, its officers and authorized
representatives during the conduct of the audit, in my opinion, adequate
systems and processes and control mechanism exist in the Company to
monitor and ensure compliance of provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations,
Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above.

We further report that:

The Board of Directors of the Company 1s duly constituted with proper balance
of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and [ndependent Directors!.
The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place
during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the
provisions of the Act.

Adequate notices were given to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings,
agenda and detailed notes on agenda werc sent at least seven days in advance,
and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and
clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful
participation at the meeting.

As per the minutes of the meetings duly recorded and signed by the Chairman,
the decisions of the Board were unanimous and no dissenting views have been
recorded.



We further report that during the audit period:

The Company Secretary of the company has resigned on 10th June, 2017 and
the new Company Secretary has been appointment w.e.f. 12th December,
2017

This Report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as
Annexure A and forms an integral part of this Report.

For Anjali Yadav& Associates
Practicing Company Secretaries

Sd/-
Anjali Yadav
Proprietor

FCS No.: 6628
CP No.: 7257

Place: New Delhi
Date: 4th May, 2018

1. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has vide its circular no. 09/2017 dated 05th September, 2017 has given
exemption to wholly owned subsidiary of an unlisted public companies under the Companies (Appointment

and Qualilication of IMrectors) Rules, 2014 {from ihe appointment of Independent director.



To

Annexure A

The Members,
Jaypee Healthcare Limited
Sector-128, Noida,U.P, - 201304

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1.

Maintenance of Secretarial and other laws records/compliance is the
responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is
to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

We have followed the audit practices and process as were appropriate to
obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness of the Secretarial
records. The verification was done on test check basis to ensure that
correct facts arc reflected in Secretarial records. We believe that the
process and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis of our

opinion.

We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial
records and Books of Accounts of the Company.

Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation
about the compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of
events,

The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws,
rules, regulations, standards is the responsibility of management. Our
examination was limited to the verification of procedure on test check

basis.

The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future
viability of the Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which
the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For Anjali Yadav& Associates
Practicing Company Secretaries

Anjali Yadav
Proprietor

FCS No.: 6628 Place: New Delhi
CP No.: 7257 Date: 4th May, 2018



I.

ANNEXURE - IV

FORM MGT - 9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

(As on the Financial Year ended on 31.03.2018)

[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of

the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS

i [CIN

U85191UP2012PLCOS53358

ii) | Registration Date

30.10.2012

iii} | Name of the Company

Jaypee Healthcare Limited

) | Category/ Sub-Category of
the Company

Public Limited Company

v) |Address of the Registered
office and contact details

Sector — 128, Noida- 201304, U.P

vi) | Whether Listed Company

No

Name, Address and Contact
details of Registrar and
Transfer Agent, if any

vii)

M/s Alankit Assignments Limited
Alankit House, 2E/21,
Jhandewalan Extension,

New Delhi - 110055

Tel. No.:011-42541234, 23541234
Fax No.:011-42541967

E-mail: info@alankit.com

II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of

the Company shall be stated:-

S.No.| Name and Description of | NIC Code of the % to total
main products/services Product/service [turnover of the
Company
1. Health care services 85110/ Hospital 100%
Activities




III. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE
COMPANIES
S. No| Name and CIN Holding / % of |Applicable
Address Subsidiary |shares Section
of the / Associate held
Company
1 Jaypee L45203UP2007PLC033119 Holding 100% 12 (46)

Infratech Company
Limited
Sector—
128, Noida
- 201304
U.P
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IV. SHAREHOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share capital breakup as percentage of Total Equity)

(iv)

Shareholding

Pattern

of top

ten shareholders

other than Directors, Promoters and holders of GDRs and ADRs)

Sl. | For each of the Top 10 | Shareholding at the | Cumulative
No | Shareholders beginning of the Year | Shareholding during
the year
No. of|% of total | No. of | % of total
Shares | shares of the | Shares | shares of the
Company Company
At the beginning of the Year

Date wise Increase/
Decrease in Shareholding
during the year specifying
the reasons for increase/
decrease

Not Applicable

At the end of the year

(v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

Sl. | For each of the | Shareholding at the | Cumulative Shareholding
No | Directors and KMP | beginning of the Year during the year
No. of | % of total | No. of | % of total
Shares shares of the  Shares shares of the
Company Company
1 Shri Manoj Gaur, | 100* 0.00004 100* 0.00003
Chairman
2 Shri  Sunil Kumar | 100* 0.00003 100* 0.00003
Sharma, Director A
3 Smt. Rekha Dixit, | 100* 0.00003 100* 0.00003
Whole-time Director
4 Shri Sunny Gaur, | 100* 0.00003 100* 0.00003
Director
S Shri Sham Lal | Nil 0.0000 Nil 0.0000
Mohan, Independent
Director
6 Shri  Atanu  Sen, | Nil 0.0000 Nil 0.0000
Independent
Director
7 Shri Malyawant | Nil 0.0000 Nil 0.0000
Passi,
Chief Financial
Officer
8. Divya Yadav, Nil 0.0000 Nil 0.0000
Company Secretary

* Beneficiary owner is Jaypee Infratech Limited.




V] INDEBTEDNESS

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not

due for payment

(in lakhs)
Seclu r;ic:l Loans Unsecured Deposits Total
exctucing Loans °p Indebtedness
deposits
Indebtedness at the beginning of the financial year i.e. 01.04.2017

1) Principal
Amount

4,89,17,23,236

4,89,17,23,236

11) Interest due but
not paid

11} Interest
accrued but not
due

Total (i+ii+iii)

4,89,17,23,236

4,89,17,23,236

Change in Indebtedness during the

financial year (2017-2018)

Addition 33,54,05,651 33,54,05,651
Reduction :-

principal 13,23,83,929 3.93.83,999
Repayment

Net Change 30,30,21,722 30,30,21,722

Indebtedness at the end of the financial year i.e. 31.03.2018

1 - Prncipal | 5 6 47 44,958 5,19,47,44,958
Amount

W) Interest due but | 5 4381084 |- : 2,43,81,284
not paid

i11) Interest

accrued but not|4,74,83,821 - - 4,74,83,821

due

------

5,26,66,10,062

5,26,66,10,062




VI) REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

{In Rs. p.a.)

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:

S. No. | Particulars of | Name of MD/WTD/Manager Total
Remuneration
Shri Sunny | Smt. Rekha
Gaur, Managing | Dixit**,
Director (Whole-time
Director)
Gross salary 1,05,30,000 1,05,30,000

(a) Salary as per
provisions contained in
section 17(1) of the
Income-tax Act, 1961

1 (b) Value of perquisites
u/s 17(2) of the Income- - -
tax Act, 1961
(c) Profits in licu of salary
under section 17(3] of the - .
Income-tax Act, 1961 N.A.
2 Stock Option ‘ - -
3 Sweat Equity - -
Commission _ - -
4 - as % of profit - - ) -
- others, specify... - .
5 Others, please speéify - -
Total (A) 1,05,30,000 | 1,05,30,000

Celllng as per the Act . - —

** Smt. Rekha Dixit was appointment as Whole-Time Director at monthly
remuneration of Rs.11,70,000/- w.e.f 01/07/2017
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(In Rs. p.a.)

C. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel other than MD/Manager/WTD

S. No.

Particulars of
Remuneration

Key Managerial Personnel

CEO

CFO

CS#

Total

Shri
Malyawant
Passi

Ms.
Yadav

Divya

Gross salary

66,50,000/ -

1,73,000/-

68,23,000/ -

(a) Salary as per
provisions
contained in
section 17(1) of
the Income-tax
Act, 1961

(b)  Value of
perquisites u/s
17(2) of the
Income-tax Act,
1961

{c) Profits in licu
of salary under
section 17(3) of
the Income-tax
Act, 1961

Stock Option

W

Sweat Equity

Commission

- as % of profit

others,
specify...

(Others,
specify

please

Total

66,50,000/-

1,73,000/-

68,23,000/-

Note:

# Ms. Divya Yadav has been appointed as CS w.e.f. 12.12.2017




VII) PENALTIES/PUNISHMENT/COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES

Type Section of | Brief Details of | Authority | Appeal
the Description ;| Penalty/ [RD/NCLT | made, if
Companies Punishment/ /Court] any (give
Act Compounding details)

fees imposed

A. Company

Penalty

- Punishment

Compounding

B. Directors Not Applicable

Penalty

Punishment

Compounding . &+

C. Other Officers in default

Penalty

Punishment

Compounding




ANNEXURE - V

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION & FOREIGN

EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

The Company had focused on several initiatives aimed at achieving the twin
objectives of reducing costs and being environmentally friendly. Efforts have
also been made towards technology absorption, adaptation & innovation.

A. Conservation of Energy:

a)

The building orientation has been designed in a manner that helps to
maximize usc of day light and to reduce heat gain in order to reduce
Energy Consumption. The Glass used in {fagade is double glazed and is
energy efficient-Low emissivity type which helps in reducing solar heat
gain coefficient while improving the visibility. Roof glazing has been
provided for the internal area of the top three floors so as to receive
daylight and reduce lighting load.

Energy efficient Chillers and Pumps have been installed to reduce
energy consumption. Variable Frequency Drives (VFDs) have been used
in Chillers, critical AHUs and pumps to reduce energy usage. The
Chillers have environment friendly R134 a refrigerant to minimize
depletion of Ozone Layer. The AHUs are monitored and controlled
through Building Management System resulting in reduction in load on
Chiller and also its running time. Variable Air Volume {VAVs] devices
have been used in some AHUs.

LED lamps and lighting have been installed across the building and the
Lighting Power Density of around 0.35 watt/sqft much below the
Industry standard. Timer based systermn has been installed to control
operation of street lighting & signage in a phased manner.

Automatic Power Factor Control panels (APFC) have been installed to
maintain power factor close to unity.

Solar water heating system has been installed on the terrace resulting
in reduction of energy required for hot water and steam requirements.

Provision has been made to reduce consumption of water by utilizing
treated waste water through STP for irrigation, for flushing and for
making up for Cooling Tower water requirements.



g) Rain Water Harvesting Pits have been provided to conserve rain water
and improve the water table.

h) Boilers can be run on Natural Gas to reduce stack emission.

i) Pneumatic Tube System has been installed to transfer samples, reports
and medicines from patient areas to lab, pharmacy, nursing stations
etc. thus reducing the usages of man movement and lifts.

B. Technology Absorption:

The Company continues to use latest technologies for improving the
productivity and quality of its services and products.

C. Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo:

Currency

{In Rs.)
Sl. No. Particulars F.Y. 2017-2018 | F.Y. 2016-2017
a, Foreign Exchange Earnings 35,49,51,197 17,19,63,033
Value of Import of Capital
b, goods (C.1.F. Value) 12,82,720 2,21,179
c Expenditure in  Foreign 45.08,069 73.14,442




ANNEXURE - VI

STATEMENT OF PARTICULARS OF EMLPLOYEES PURSUANT TO
PROVISIONS OF SECTION 197(12) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ
WITH COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF

MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014

A. Employed throughout the Financial Year 2017-18 and in receipt of
remuneration aggregating Rs. 1,02,00,000/- or more per annum

NIL

B. Employed for part of the year and in receipt of remuneration
aggregating Rs. 8,50,000/- or more per month

Smt. Rekha Dixit
Whole-Time Director
Rs. 11,70,000/-
Regular employee

Name of the employee
Designation of the employee
remuneration received
Nature of employment,
contractual or otherwise

whether

employee before joining the company

Infratech Limited

Qualifications and experience of the M.A. (English), 17 years of
employee | experience
Date of commencement of employment | 01.07.2018
| Age of such employee 59 Years
The last employment held by such | Whole-Time Director, Jaypee
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CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 1203, Rohit House
New Delhi - Alwar 3, Tolstoy Marg

New Delhi - 110 001

Ph.: 23315870

23320537

Fax: 23358544

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

TC THE MEMBERS OF
JAYPEE HEALTHCARE LIMITED

Repoert on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of JAYPEE HEALTHCARE LIMITED ({('the
Company"}, which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2018, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the
Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Management's Responsibility for the FInancial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsitle for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act.
2013 ("the Act’) with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial positien, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the
Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules. 2014, This responsibility includes maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularifies; selection and application of
appropriate accounfing policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls. that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial staiements based on our audit.

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters which
are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made there under.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the
Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit te
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the Company’s preparation of the
financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company's Directors, as well as evaluating the
overal! presentation of the financial statemenis.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our Information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information reguired by the Act in the manner so required and give a frue and farr
view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the siate of affairs of the
Company as at 31™ March 31, 2018, and iis loss and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Page 1 of 6




Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As

required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 20168 ("the Order”} issued by the Central

Government of 'ndia in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Crder

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act. we report that:

(a)

{b)

(e}

(e)

U

(@)

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanafions which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit,

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books,

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this
Report are in agreement with the books of account;

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under
Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rule, 2014,

On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on 31% March, 2018, and taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31% March, 2018 from
being appoeinted as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Repost in
"Annexure A"

With respect 10 the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us'

The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position,

ii. The Company did not have any leng-term contracis including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foresegable losses.

iii. There were no amounfs which were required to be iransferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

ForAWATAR & CO.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 000726N

S g gt

Brijendra Agrawal

v

Partner

Membership Na. : 087787

Place : New Delhi
Date . May 4, 2018
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ANNEXURE TO AUDITORS’ REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 1 of our report of even date)

(

)

(iil)

()

(v}

(vi)

(vii)

In respect of its fixed assets:

(@) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative details
and situation of the fixed assets.

{0y As explaineg to us, all the fixed assets have been physically verified by the management in a
nhased pericdical manner, which in our opinicn is reasonable, having regard to the size of the
Company and nature of its assets. No material discrepancies were noticed on such physical
verification.

{¢) We have inspected the original title deeds of immovable properties of the Company held as fixed
assets which are in the custody of the Company. Based on our audit procedures and the
information and explanations received by us, we report that all title deeds of immovable properties
of the Company held as fixed assets are held in the name of the Company.

in respect of its inventeries:

(a) The inventones have been physically verified during the year by the management. In our opinion,
the frequency of verification 1s reasonable.

(b} In our opinion and accerding to the information and explanations given to us, the procedures of
physical verification of inventories followed by the management are reasonable and adequate in
relation to the size of the Company and the nature of its business.

(c) The Company bas maintained proper records of inventories. As explained to us, there were no
material discrepancies naticed on physical verification of inventories as compared fo the book
records.

According to the infermation and explanations given by the management, the Company has not granted
any loans or advances in the nature of lcans (except advances in the ordinary course of business) to
companies, limited liability partnerships. firms or other paries covered in the register maintained under
section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. Hence, the requirement of Clause 3(iil) of the Order is not
applicable,

According to the information and explanations given to us. the Company has no Investments, Loans and
Guarantees Hence, the requirement of Clause 3{iv} of the Order is not applicable.

Based on our scrutiny of the Company's recerds and according to the information and explanations
provided by the management, in our opinicn, the Company has not accepted any loans or deposits which
are ‘deposits’ within the meaning of Rule 2(b) of the Companies {Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014

[t has heen explained that books of account relating to materials. labour and other items of cost pursuant
to the Rules made by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records under section 148(1)
of the Companies Act, 2013 are in the process of being prepared for the year ¢covered under this report.

{a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is generally regular in
depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statufory dues including provident fund,
employees state insurance, income tax. sales-tax, wealth tax, service tax, customs duty, value
added tax, excise duty, cess and other statutery dues applicable to it. However, there were delays
in depositing the dues of provident fund and emgloyee state insurance in some months during the
year.

According to the information and explanations given, no undisputed amounts were payable in

respect of income tax. sales tax, value added tax, customs duty and excise duty were cutstanding
as at 31°' March, 2018 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.
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(iil)

()

(xi)

(xii)

(xiil)

ForAWATAR & CO.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Regisiration No. 000726N
Brijendra Agrawal

Partner

{p)  According to the information and explanations given to us, there were no dues in respect of income
tax, sales tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess which have not
been deposited on account of disputes.

Based on our audit procedures and on the information and explanations given by the management, we
are of the opinicn that the Company has defaulted in repayment of interest on leans availed from various
banks as per the details given below: -

5. No. Lender Period of default  Amount of default (Rs.)
1 South Indian Bank 37 days 24,24 195
2 Oriental Bank of Commerce 41 days 4743237
3 Union Bank of India 35 days 7511,818
4 Vijaya Bank 45 days 4871771
5 Exim Bank 45 days L 48,30,265
Total 2.4381,284

The Company has not issued any debentures.

According to the information and explanations received by us, moneys raised by way cf term loans have
been applied for the purpose for which they were raised. The Company has not raised any moneys by
way of Initial Public Cffer or Further Public Offer.

Based upon the zudit procedures performed and information and explanations given by the management.
we report that no fraud on the Company by its officers or employees nor any fraud by the Company has
been noticed or reported during the course of our audit.

Based upon the audit procedures performed and information and explanations given by the management,
the Company has not paid/provided managerial remuneration during the year Hence, the requirements
of Clause 3(xi) of the Crder is not applicable.

ln owr opinion and to the best of our information and explanations provided by the management, we are of
the opinicn that the Company is not a nidhi  Hence, the requirement of Clause 3{xii) of the Qrder do not
apply to the Company.

Based upon the audit procedures performed and information and explanations given by the management,
we report that all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the details have been disclosed in the Financial Statements etc., as required
by the applicable accounting standards.

Based upon the audit procedures performed and informaticn and explanations given by the management.
we report that the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or
fully or partly convertible debentures during ithe year under review.

Based upon the audit procedures performed and information and explanations given by the management.
we report that the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persens
connected with them.

Membership No. - 087787

Place - New Delhi
Date : May 4, 2018
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ANNEXURE ‘A’ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE STANDALONE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF JAYPEE HEALTHCARE LIMITED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause {) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act™

We have audited the internal financial controls aver financial reporting of JAYPEE HEALTHCARE LIMITED
("the Company”) as of March 31, 2018 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the
Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responslbllity for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’'s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based
ot the internal control over financial reporing criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal confral stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting 1ssued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India”. These respansibilities include
the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's
policies, the safeguarding of its assets. the prevention and deiection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timety preparation of reliable financial information, as required
under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Qver Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing, issued by
ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act. 2013, to the extent applicable
to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both
issued by the Institute of Charlered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such
contro!s operated effectively in 2l material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Cur audit of internal financial controls
over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial
reporting. assessing the risk that a material weakness exists. and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of Internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or eiror.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's nternal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliabitity of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control
over financial reporting includes those palicies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records
that, in reascnable detail, accurately ang fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company, {2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accouniing principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisafions of management and
directors of the company. and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Page 5 of 6




Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility
of collusion or improper management ovedride of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may
occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controis over financial
reporting to future periods are subject ta the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls cver financial reporing were operating effectively as at
March 31, 2018. based on the intemmal contral cver financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of iniernal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For AWATAR & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No : 000726N

an:mm %w—«f’“e

BRIJENDRA AGRAWAL
Partner
Membership No.. 087787

Place : New Delhi
Date  May 4, 2018
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Jaypee Heatthcare Limited
Balant e Sheet ag at March, 31 2018

Particulars N:;E As at March,31 2018 As at March, 31 2017
Assets
Non Current Assets
Froperty  olant arg eanpment 3 7,05,35,13,462 6,661,479, 21,447
Capital work wn progress 3 57,29,34, 674 1,20, 44 56,156
Other 1atangible assets 4 33,128,715 48,504,719
Financial Assets
(11 Qiher financia, asseis 5 29.55,797 21,%/4,520
Cther non curreni asses 5 1,%8,28,66,001 23,59,24,398
n,21,85,98,611 8,06,21,54,249
Current Assets -
Inventanes 7 8,49,71,464 10,10,43, 245
Firancial Assets
I Irade recevables ] 18, B.,55,035 11,92,34, 6%
1i3Cash and casp equivalents 9 §.96,71,948 5,78,71,143
7'y Bank balance nther than (i) above 10 11.69,01,157 12.99,%4,016
{iv) Loans 11 12,74,27,037 23,29,15,464
v Other finangial assets 2 P29, 150 40,05,977
Current tax assects 10,30,84,666 4,85,37,420
Oiher curren’, asseks 13 3,17.09,230 ,21,44,457
&7,40,14,729 70,22 86,248
Total 9,89,26,13,335 8,76,44,40,497
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 14 4,27.30,00,000 4,27,50,00.000
Gther squity i35 {2,79.61.46,028) (1.77,38.19,217)
1.17,58,53,972 2,50,17,80,783
Ron Current Liabilites
Firancial Liabilities
(11 Burrowings 16 5.09,72,44,958 4,73,%3,.70,181
)y Other Finaneal Liatalitres 17 10,499,660 9,30,%63
Provisians 18 2.43,01,530 §,86,83,541
Other non corrent liabilicy 19 13,23.80,30 4,84,73, 351
. 5,25.49.76,540 4,80,74,58,036
Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowing 20 49,%6,77,601 49,13.65,254
(1) Trade pavables I3l 76,98,90,930 £0,10,52 248
{1y Qther financial habilibies 72 1,86,56,%3, 30 29,95,42,92%
Provisions 21 12,61,003 5,01,095
Qther current habimies 24 2,60,02,5978 &,67,40,155
3,159,87 B2,824 1,45,92,01,678
Total 9,89,76,13,335 8,76,44,40, 497
Significant Accounting Policies 182

/'“jcr and an behalt of the Board
£ S

/LAA ({ /

For Awatar & Co. Manc] Gacr SunsyfGas
Chariered Accouniants {harrman Mana e
Firin Registravion Mo 0607268 DIN-0Q0NR4R0 DIN-0000B2Y3
‘\@V\JA_L B
; (\ 7 ARk
; A \
7(’,_;# - L\ arn
(3rijendra Agrawal) Y Rk har BTt Malyaveant Passt "
Pariner Whele-time Dhectar Chief Finauga! Officor
M. No OB7787 DIN-DUY 13685 =
E
\’\‘{v P ‘\ d
Place: Noida g ‘XYE‘ Ay

Dated: 4th May'201 8 oz Company Secrctary



Jaypee Healthcare Limited

Profit & Less and Other Comprehensive Income for the periad ended 31 March 2018

Particulars Mote  For the period ended 31 For the period ended 31
No March 2018 Marech 2017

Revenue
Revenue From Operations 25 2,64,10,75,091% 1,96,01,52,582
Cther Ircome 26 5,37,29,206 2,15,79,991
Total Income 2,69,48,04,297 1,98,20,82,575
Expenses
Cost Of Sales 2/ &4,60,63,557 49,40,5G,811
Employee Benefits Expense 28 45,74,49,053 40,58.00,779
Finance Coss 29 60.99,063,728 56,39,47,733
Depreciation And Amortization Expense 30 34,91 ,Ed'?03 35,2468, 664
Other Expenses 31 1.65,62,27 727 1,29,3¢,35,052
Total expepses 3,71.88,84,776 3,10,95,03,03%
Profit before tax {1,02,10,80,479) {1,12,74,20,464}
Tax expense:
{1) Current 1ax
(2) Deferred tax -
Brofit {Loss) For the Period {1,02,40,80,479) (1,12,74,20,464)
Other Comprehensive lncome
tenns Lhat will not be reclassiflied to profit or loss 11,553,668 1,40,339
income Tax relating to items that wilk not be reclassified
to profit or loss .
Other Comprehensive Income 11,53,668 2,40,339
Total Comprehensive lncome {1,02,29,26,811) (1,12,?1?80,@
Earnings per Equity Share 32
11} Basic {2.3N 12.64)
12} Diluted (2.3 {2.64)
Sigmificant Accounting Policies TR2

For Awalar & (0.
Chartered Accountants
From Remislration Ko 0007 26M

(Brijendra Agrawal)

Partner
M. No. OBY 787

Flace: Wnida
Dated: Ath pay' 2018

ﬂ For and on behalf of the Board
}(noj‘(‘mur

Chairman
DIN-00008480

Aol

Whole-time Director
DIN-00%1 3685

" A
LN
Mvyd Yadav

Company Secretary

Sunny Gaur

.fi;;geslﬂnﬂner”"
00002293

Nanar

Malyawant P}w
Chief Finapefal Officer



Jaypee Healthcare Limited

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

Cash flow statement

Year ended
March,31 2018
3

Year ended
March,31 2017
K

A

Cash flows from operating activities

Profit far the year

Adjustments for:
Deoreciation
Interest and finance charges
Loss an disposal of PPE
Life time expected credit loss
Qther Incomes
[nterest income on fixed deposits
Remeasurement ol actunal gan/loss
Non cash Lease Rental Cxpenses

Operating probit befsre working capital changes

Adjustments for :
(Increase} / decrease i nventonegs
iincrease} / decrease w trace recewables
{Increase) / decredse in Loans ard acvances
{Increase) / decrease i Other Bark balance
{Ircrease) / decrease n other finanQai assets
{Increase) [ decrease 1n other current assets
{Inhcreased / decrease i Short term barrawing
Incredse / (decrease) in trade payables
Increase / (decrease] 1 ather current Lizhilities

Increase / {decrease) in other financial habibtes and provision
Increase [/ {decrease) in other nan current assets

Cash generated from operations
Income tax refund/ {paid)

Net Cash fiow generated from operating activities

Cash flow from investing activities
Additions to PPE (InCluding net mavement in CWiIP}
O1sposal of PPE
Change in security depos:t
Interest 1aceme on fixed deposit
Met cash flows (used in) investing activities

Cash flow from financing activities
Proceesds from long term borrow:ngs
Interest and finance charges pawd

Net cash flows (used in)/ generated from financing activities

Het change in cash and cash equivalents {A+B+C)
Cash and cash equivalents- opening balance
Cash and cash equivalents- closing balance

Notes to cash flaw statement:
Cash and cash equivalents inciude :
Balance with Banks
Cheques, drafts on haad
Cash on nand
Deposit Accounts { up tu 3 months)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year [refer note no 15]

{1,02,40,80,479)

34,91,80.703

{1,12,74,20,464)

35,24,68,664

60, 32.10,024 B4, 24,849,623
£,07,46,718 .
78,25.815 56,69,142
11,66,13.771) (29,78,186}
(1,31,50,435) (4.17,75.870)
11,593,668 2,400,339
1,19,765 41,658 |
{8,16,07,993) 123,02,64,797)

1,60,91,791
(6,97,20,339)
10,54, 88,427
1,26,12,859
(81,14,028)
(1,95,64,973)
43,12,347
16,88,38,682
(7,94,91,043)

1,47,2/,12,134
{1,35,00,61,368)

(1,37,06,807)
(5,64,52, 764}
{13,55,23,602}
{2,11,89,951)
i1,10,90,385)
(48,86,215)
30,04,46 788
15,50,53,689
13,46,49,499

(30,03,43,529)
3,72,09,654

17,14,96,497
{5,4%5,47,246}

{14,60,98,416)
(2,71,56,747)

11,69,49,251

{17,32,55,163)

(16,90,94,502)

156,23,69,569)

75.00,000
16,39,570) {6,67,294)
1.31,50,435 1,17,37,264
(14,90,83,637) (35,12,99,599)

50,48.94, 844
(51,09,59,674)

1,12,29,12,873
155,63,04,308]

(60,64,830)

56,69,08,565

13,81.99,216)

(15,76,46,197)

5,78,71.163 21,55,17,399
1,96,71.946 h,78,71.163
1,24,90,541 1,56,49,842
22,02,751 1.50,02,442
49,78,655 41,190,562

: 2,31,08,317
1,96,71,947 5,78,71,163
1,96,71,947 5,78,71,163




Notes;
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The Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in the Accounting Standard (IND
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Note 9:- SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1. General Information of the Company:-

Jaypee Healthcare Limited was incorporated on 30" Ociober, 2012 as a wholly owned subsidiary of Jaypee
Infratech Limited to establish “Jaypee Hospital”. laypee Hospital located at Sector - 128, Noida was established
with the vision to promote world-class healthcare amongst the masses by providing quality and affordable medical
rare with commitment.

Jaypee Hospital is the flagship hospital of Jaypee Group, which heralds the group's noble intention to enter the
healthcare space. Jaypee Hospital has been planned and designed as a 1200 bed tertiary care multi-specialty
healthcare facility and has commissioned 525 beds in the first phase.

Jaypee Hospital is constructed across a sprawling twenty five acre campus in Noida which is easily accessible from
Dethi, Noida and Yamuna Expressway.

Company has started its OPD & IPD at Jaypee Hospital, Chitta, which is located at 6-7 km from center of
Bulandshahr en Shikarpur road ard 90 minutes away from Jaypee Hospital, Noida. Jaypee Hospital, Chitta has been
planned and designed as 205 bedded tertiary care multi specialty healthcare facility.

Company has started OPD at Jaypee Hospital, Anoopshahr, District-Bulandshabr. Jaypee Hospital, Anoopshahr has
been planned and designed as 85 secondary care healthcare facilities.

Significant Accounting Policies
2,
a)  Basis of preparation:-

The Company has adopted accounting policies that comply with Indian Accounting standards {INDAS or Ind AS)
notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs vide notification dated 16 February 2015 under section 133 of the
Companies Act 2013. Accounting policies have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these financial
statements. The financial statements referred hereinafter have been prepared in accordance with the
requirements and instructions of Schedule 11l to the Companies Act 2013, amended from time to time applicable to
companies to whom Ind AS applies read with the Ind AS.

Effective April 1, 2016 The company has adopted Ind AS Standard and adoption was carried out in accordance with
Ind As 101 First time adoption of indian accounting standard with Apcil 1 2015 as the transition date.
b} Use of Estimates:-

The preparation of financial statements require estimates and assurnptions to be made that affect the reparted
amount, of asset and liabilities on the date of the financial staiemerts and the reported amount of the revenue and
the expenses during the reporting period. Difference between the actual results angd estimates are recognized in
the periad in which the results are known / materialized.

¢)  Summary of Significant Accounting Policy:
1. Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE): -

PPE are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accurnulated impairment losses, if any.



The initial cost of PPE comprise its purchase price, including import duties, net of modvat/cenvat, less
accumulated depreciation and include any directly attributable costs of bringing an asset to working condition and
location for its intended use, including borrowing costs relating to the qualified asset over the period up to the
date the assets are put to use s included in cost of relevant assets. Exchange rate variations relating to long term
monetary items is charged to profit & loss if foreign currency loan is taken after 31 March 2016.

All other expenditure related to existing assets including day-to-day repair and maintenance expenditure and cost
of replacing parts, are charged to the statement of profit and loss in the period during which such expenditure is
incurred,

The carrying amount of a property, plant and equipment is de-recognised when nc future economic benefits are
expected from its use or on disposal.

Machine spares that can be used only in connection with an item of fixed asset and their use is expected for more
than one year are capitalized.

Depreciation on property plant and equipment is provided on straight line method based on estimated useful life
of assets as prescribed in schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013.Estimated useful lives of the assets are as follow:-

Class of Assets Useful life
Plant & Machinery 15 Year
Computer & Software 6 Year
Oftice Equipments 9 Year
Furniture 10 Year
Building 60 Year
Motor Vehicles 8 Year
Medical Equipment & Appliances 13 Year

The property, plant and equipment acquired under finance leases, if any, is depreciated over the asset’s useful life
or over the shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term if there is no reasonable certainty that the
Company will obtain ownership at the end of the lease term.

Cost of leasehold land, other than acquired on perpetual basis, is amortized aver the lease period. And shewn as
prepaid rent.

Depreciation on the assets purchased during the year is provided on pro-rata basis from the date of purchase of the
assets.

Gains and losses on de-recognition/disposals are determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of those assets. Gains and Losses if any, are recognised in the statement of profit or loss
on de-recognition or disposal as the case may be.

2. Intangible Assets:-
Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment losses, if any.

The cost of an intangible asset includes purchase cost (net of rebates and discounts), including any import duties
and non-refundable taxes, and any directly attributable costs on making the asset ready for its intended use.

The Cost of Intangible assets are amortized on a straight line basis over their estimated useful life which is as
follows.

MNature of Assets Useful Life

Computer software 3 Years

The amortisation period and method are reviewed at least at each financial year end. If the expected vseful life of
the asset is significantly different from previous estimates, the amortisation period is changed accordingly.




An intangible asset is derecoghised on disposal or when no future economic benefits are  expected from use. Gains
and losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset are recognised in the statement of profit and loss when the
asset is de-recognized or on disposal.

3. Inventories:-
Inventories are valued at weighted average cost.

Cost of inventories shall comprise of all cost of purchase, taxes and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories
to their present location and condition.

4, Impairment of Tangible Assets and intangible Assets

At the end of each reporting period, the company reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible
assets to determine whether there is any indication based on internal/ external factors that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in
order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if anyj. When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset, the company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which
the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation ¢an be identified, corporate assets are also
allecated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-
generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation hasis can be identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives ang intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for
impairment at least annually, and whenever there is an indication that the asset may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value 1n use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates
of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount,
the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its iecoverable amount. An impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The impairment loss recognized in prior accounting period 1s reversed if there has been a change in the estimate of
recoverable amount

5. Foreign Exchange Transactions:-
These financial statements are presented 1n Indian rupees {INR), which is the Company's functional currency

Transactions in foreign currency are recorded on initial recognition at the spot rate prevailing at the time of the
transaction.

At the end of each reporting period

« Monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date,

» Non-monetary items carried at fair vatue that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined.

= Mon-moneatary items that are measured terms of histerical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated

Exchange differences arising an the settlement of monetary items or on translating monetary items at rates
different fream those at which they were translated on initial recognition during the period or in previous financial
statements are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise,

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise except
for:



i. Exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings relating Lo assets under construction for future productive
use, which are included in the cost of those assets when they are regarded as adjustment to interest costs on those
foreign currency borrowings

ii. The exchange differences arising on reporting of long term foreign currency monetary items at rates different
from those at which they were initially recorded n so far as they relate

iil. to the acquisition of depreciable capital assets are shown by addition to/deduction from the cost of the assets
as per exemption provided under IND AS 21 read along with Ind AS 101 appendix ‘D’ clause-D13AA.

iv. Exchange differences on monetary items receivable from or payable to a foreign operation which settlement is
neither planned nor likely to occur (therefore forming part of the investment in the foreign operation), which are
recognised initially in other comprehensive income and reclassified from equity to profit or loss on repayment of
the monetary itemns,

6. Borrowing Cost:-

Borrowing costs specifically relating to the acquisition or construction of a qualifying asset that necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use are capitalized as part of the cost of the asset. All
other horrowing costs are charged to profit & loss account in the period in which it is incurred except loan
processing fees which is recognized as per Cffective Interest Rate method. Borrowing costs cansist of interest and
ather costs that company incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Berrowing cost also includes exchange
differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

7. Employee Benefits:-

Contribution to Provident fund/Pension fund:-Retirement henefits in the form of Provident fund / Pension
Schemes are defined contribution schemes and the contributions are charged to the Profit & Loss Account in the
year when the contributions to the respective funds become due. The Company has no obligation other than
contribution payable to these funds.

Gratunty liability is a defined benefit obligation and is provided for on the basis of an actuarial valuation made at
the end of each financal year. However, the Company has taken a policy with LIC to cover the gratuity liability of
the employees. The difference between the actuarial valuation of gratuity for employees at the year-end and the
balance of funds with LIC is provided for as liability in the books.

Defined Benefit Plans :- Defined benefit costs are categorised as follows:

v service cost (including current service cost, past service cost, as well as gains and losses on curtailments and
settlements)

» net interest expense or income and

* remeasurement

The company presents the first two components of defined benefit costs in profit or loss in the line item ‘Employee
benefits expense’. Curtailment gains and losses are accounted for as past service costs.

Remeasurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the changes to the asset ceiling {if applicable)
and the return on plan assets {excluding net interest), is reflected immediately in the balance sheet with a charge
or credit recognised in other comprehensive income in the peried in which they accur, Remeasurement recognised
in other comprehensive income is reflected immediatety in retained earnings and is not reclassified to profit or
loss. Past service cost is recognised in profit or loss in the period of a plan amendment,

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate at the beginning of the period to the net defined benefit

liability or asset. —
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For defined benefit retirement benefit plans, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the projected unit
credit method, with actuarial valuations being carried out a1 the end of each annuat reporting period.

The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the halance sheet represents the actual deficit or surplus in the
company's defined benefit plans. Any surplus resulting from this calculation is (imited to the present value of any
economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the plans or reductions in future coniribubions to the
plans.

Liability for a termination benefit is recognised at the earlier of when the company can no longer withdraw the
offer of the termination benefit and when the company recognises any related restructuring costs.

Short-term and other long-term employee benefits:- A liability is recognised for benefits acgruing to employees
in respect of wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave in the periad the related service is rendered at the
urdiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for that service. These benefits include
bonus/incentives and compensated absences which are expected to occur within twelve months after the end of
the period in which the employee renders the related service.

Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term employee benefits are measured at the undiscounted amount of the
benefits expecied to be paid in exchange for the related service,

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term employee benefits are measured at the present value of the
estimated future cash outflows expected Lo be made by the campany in respect of services provided by employees
up to the reporting date.

Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next 12 months, is treated as short-term employee
benefit. The company measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that it expects to
pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date.

The cost of the defined beneht gratuity plan and their present value are determined using actuarial valuations. An
actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future.
These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the
complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to
changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

The most sensitive is discount rate. The management has considers the interest rates of government bonds. Future
salary increases and gratuity increases are based on expected future inflation rates.

8. Tax Expenses:-

Income Tax expense comprises of current. tax and deferred tax charge or credit. Provision for current tax is made
with reference to taxable income computed for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared
by applying the tax rates as applicable.

Current Tax:-Current Income tax relating to items recognized outside the profit and loss is recognized outside the
profit and loss (either in other comprehensive income or in eqguity)

MAT - Minimum Alternate Tax [MAT) paid in a vear is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss as current tax.
The company recognizes MAT credit available as an asset only to the extent there is convincing evidence that the
company will pay normal income tax during the specified period, i.e., the period for which MAT Credit s allowed
to be carried forward. In the year in which the Company recognizes MAT Credit as an asset in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Accounting for Credit Available in respect of Minimum Alternate Tax under the Income Tax Act,
1961, the said asset is created by way of credit to the statement of Profit and Loss and shown as "MAT Credit
Entitlement.” The Company reviews the “MAT Credit Entitlement” asset at each reporting date and writes down
the asset to the extent the company does not have convincing evidence that it will pay normal tax duoring the
sufficient period. Mat are recognized under other non-current assets.



Deferred Tax:- Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet approach on temporary differences at the
reporting date between the tax hases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purpose at reporting date. Deferred income tax assets and labilities are measured using tax rates and tax laws
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply to taxable
income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect of
changes in tax rates on deferred income tax assets and liabilities is recognized as income ¢r expense in the period
that includes the enactment or the substantive enactment date. A deferred income tax asset is recognized to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences and tax losses can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed zs at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will not be available against which deferred tax asset to
be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the
extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax asseis are recognized for the unused tax credit to the extent that it is probable that taxable profiis
will be available against which the losses will be utilized. Significant management judgement is required to
determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of
future taxable profits,

9. Leases:-

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

A lease is classified at the inception date as a finance lease or an operating lease. A lease that transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership to the Company is classified as a finance lease.
When acquired, such assets are capitalized at fair value of the leased property or present value of minimum lease
payments, at the inception of lease, whichever is lower.

Other leases are Operating leases, Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense in the statement of
profit and less on a straight line basis over the lease term. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging
an operating lease are added toe the carrying amount of the leased asset and amortised over the lease term on the
straight line basis

As a Lessor

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of an asset are
classified as operating leases. Assets subject to aperating leases are included in PPE. Rental income from operating
lease is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Where the rentals are structured
solely to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the company's expected inflationary
cost increases, such increases are recognised in the year in which such benefits accrue.

Costs, including depreciation, are recognized as an expense in the statement of profit and loss. Initial direct costs
such as legal costs, brokerage costs, etc. are recognized immediately in the statement of profit and loss.

As a lessee

Leases in which significant portions of risks and reward of ownership are not transferred to the company as lessee
are classified as operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense in the Profit and Loss
account on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Where the rentals are structured solely to increase in line
with expccted general inflation to compensate for the lessor's expected inflativnary cost 1ncreases, such increases
are recognised in the year in which such henefits accrue. Contingent rentals arising under operating leases are
recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred. Lease hold land consider as operating lease
and amortised over the lease term.



Leases where the lessor effectively transfers substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the asset are
classified as finance leases and are capitalized at the inception of the lease term at the lower of the fair value of
the leased property and present value of minimum lease payments. Lease payments are apportioned between the
finance charges and reduction of the lease Liability

s0 as to achieve a constant rate of intergst on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are
recognized as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss. Lease management fees, legal charges and other
initial direct costs of lease are capitalized.

For arrangements entered inte priar to 1 April 2015, the Company has determined whether the arrangement
contain lease on the basis of facts and circumstances existing on the date of transition in accordance with Ind AS
101 "First time adoption of Indian Accounting Standards”.

10. Fair Value Measurement:-
The Company measures financial instruments at fair value at each balance sheet date,

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption
that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

- In the principal market for the asset or Liability or

- In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate
economic benefiis by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Entity uses valuation techiniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the vse of
unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabitities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level nput that is sighificant to the fair
value measurement as a whole:

Level 1: Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2: Valuation techriigues for which the lawest level input that is significant ta the fair value measurement is
directly or indirectly observable

Level 3: Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable

For the purpese of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets & liabilities on the basis of
the nature, characteristics and the risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as
explained above.

11. Financial Instrument

equity instrument of another entity.

Financial asset is any assets that is

> Cash;

> an equity instrument of another entity;

> a contractual right:

(i) to receive cash or another financial asset from another entity, or

favorable to the entity; or

~ a contract that will or may be settled in the entity’s own eguity instruments and is:

: "

#
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{i} a non-derivative for which the entity is or may be obliged to receive a variable number of the entity's own
equity instruments; or

{ii} a derivative that will or may be settled other than by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another
financial asset for a fixed number of the entity’s own equity instruments,

Financial assets includes Security depaosits trade receivable, loan to body corporate, loan to employees, and other
eligible current and non-current assets

Financial Liability is any liabilities that is

» @ contractual obligation :

{i) to deliver cash or another financial asset to another entity; or

(fiy to exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another entity under conditions that are potentially
unfavorahle to the entity; or .

¥ acontract that will or may be settled in the entity's own equity instruments and is:

(i) a non-derivative for which the entity is or may be obliged to deliver a variable number of the entity's own
equity instruments; or

(i} a derivative that will or may be settled ather than by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another
financial asset for a fixed number of the entity’s own equity instruments.

For this purpose, rights, options or warrants to acquire a fixed number of the entity’s own equity instruments for a
fixed amount of any currency are equity instruments if the entity offers the rights, options or warrants pro rata to
all of its existing owners of the same class of its own non-derivative equity instruments.

Financial liabilities includes Loans, trade payable and eligible current and non-current tiabilities

i. Classification:-

The Company classifies financial assets as subsequently measured at amoertised cost, fair value through other
comprehensive income or fair value through profit or loss on the basis of bath:

. the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and

. the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if both of the following conditions are met:the financial asset is
held within a business madel whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows
ang

- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

A financial asset is measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if hoth of the following conditions
are met:

- the financial asset is held within a business medel whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual
cash flows and selling financial assets and

payments of principal and interest on the pringipal amount outstanding.

A financial assel is measured at fair value through profit or loss unless it is measured at amortised cost or at fair
value through other comprehensive income.

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amertised cost using the effective interest method or fair
value through profit or loss.

ii. Initial Recognition and Measurement:-

The company recognizes financial assets and financial liabilities when it becomes a party o the contractual
provisions aof the instrument. All financial assets and liabilities are recognized at fair value at initial recognition,
plus or minus, any transaction cost that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities that are not at fair value through profit o: loss.



ifi. Financial Assets Subsequent Measurement;-

Financial assets as subsequent measured at amortised cost, fair value thraugh other comprehensive income (FYOCH
or fair value through profit or loss (FYTPL} as the case may be.

Financial liabilities as subsequent measured at amortised cost or fair value through profit or loss
iv, Effective Interest Method :-

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and allocating
interest income over the relevant period, The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or received that form integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the debt instrument, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt instruments other than those financial a classified as at
FVTPL. Interest income is recognised in profit or loss and is included in the "Other income” line item.

v. Trade Receivables:-

Trade receivables are the contractual right to receive cash or other financial assets and recognized initially at fair
value. Subsequently measured at amortised cost (Initial fair value less expected credit loss). Expected credit loss is
the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the company and all that the company expects
to receive (i.e. all cash shortfall}, discounted at the effective interest rate.

vi. Equity investments:-

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value other than investment in subsidiary,
Associates and Joint venture. For all other equity instruments, the company may make an irrevocable election to
present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value. The Company makes such election on
aninstrument by- instrument basis

vii. Cash and cash Equivalents:-
Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an
original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

viii. impairment of Financial Assets:-

The company recognizes loss allowances using the expected credit loss (ECL) madel for the financial assets which
are not fair valued through profit or loss. Loss allowance for trade receivables with no significant financing
cornponent is measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECL. For all other financial assets, expected credit losses
are measured at an amount equal to the 12-month ECL, tunless there has been a significant increase in credit risk
from initial recognition in which case those are measured at lifetime ECL. The amount of expected credit losses (or
reversal) that is required to adjust the loss allowance st the reporting date to the amount that is required to be
recognised is recognized as an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss.

ix. Financial Liabilities:-

Financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value less any directly attribntable transaction costs. These are
subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method or fair value through profit or loss. For
trade and other payables maturing within one year from the balance sheet date, the carrying amounts
approximate fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments.

x. Trade Payables ;-

Trade payables represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end of financial
year and which are unpaid. Trade payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due within 12
months after the reporting period or not paid/payable within operating cycle. They are recognised initially at their
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
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xi. Borrowings:-

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds [net of transaction costs) and the redemption
amount is recognised in profit or loss aver the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method. Fees
paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as transaction costs of the loan.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional right to defer settlement
of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period. Where there is a breach of a material provision of
a long-term loan arrangement on or before the end of the reporting period with the effect that the liability
becomes payable on demand on the reporting date, the company does not classify the liability as current, it the
lender agreed, after the reporting penod and before the approval of the financial statements for issue, not to
demand payment as a consequence of the breach.

xsi. Equity Instruments;-
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of company after deducting all
of its liabilities, Equity instruments are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

xiil. Derecognition of Financial Instrument.:-

The company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset
expire or it transfers the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for derecognition under Ind AS 109. A financial
liability (or a part of a financial liability) is derecognized from the company's halance sheet when the obtigation
specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expires.

xiv. Offsetting of Financial Instruments:-

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a
currently enforceable leual right to offset the recoenised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net
basis, to realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously

xv. Derivative Financial Instruments:-

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date the derivative contracts are entered and are
subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the end of each reparting period. The resulting gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss immediately unless the derivative is designated and effective as a bedging instrument,
in which event the timing of the recognition in profit or loss.

12. Provision and Contingent Liability;-

i. A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the contral of the Company or 4
present cbligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot
be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company does not recognize a contingent liability but
discloses its existence in the financial statements.

il. Contingent liabilities, if material, are disclosed by way of notes unless the possibility of an outflow of resources
embodying the economic benefit is remote and contingent assets, if any, is disclosed in the notes to financial
statements.

iit, A provision is recognized, when company has a present cobligation {legal or constructive) as a result of past
events and it is probable that an ocutflow of resaurces embodying econemic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation, in respect of which a reliabte estimate can be made for the amaunt of obligation. The expense relating
to the prowvision is presented in the profit and loss net of any reimbursement.



13, Earnings Per Share

Basic £arnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit after tax by the weighted average number of equity
shares outstanding during the period. For the purpose of calculating Diluted earnings per share, the ret profit for
the period attributable to equity shareholders and the weighied average number of shares cutstanding during the
period are adjusted for the effects of ail dilutive potential equity shares.

14. Revenue:-

Revenue 15 measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into accouni the
contractually defined terms of payment net of returns and allowances, trade discounis and volume rebates,
excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf of the government..

Revenue is recognized only when the significant risk and reward of the ownership is transferred to the buyer
usually on delivery of the goods. Revenue s recognized to the extent that it is probable that the econamic benefit
will flow to the Company, revenue can be reliably measured and the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of
the transaction can be measured reliably,

Revenue from healthcare services has been recognized as and when related services are rendered i.e. on
completed service contract method. Revenue includes value of services for patients undergoing treatment and
pending for billing to be shown as Unbilled Revenue.

Pharmacy sales shall be recoznized when the risks and rewards of ownership shall be passed to customers angd are
stated net of returns, discounts but inclusive of VAT wherever applicable,

Interest income from financial assets is recognized when it s probable that the economic benefit will flow to the
company.

Dividend income is recognized when the Group’s right to receive payment is established. (Provided that it is
probable that the economic benefit will flow to the Group)

Income from Rent Revenue is recognized in accordance with the terms of agreements entered into with the
respective lessees,

15. Operating Cycle:-

Based on the nature of praducis 7 activities of the Campany and the normal time between acquisition of assets and
their realization in cash or cash equivalents, the Company has determined its operating cycle as 12 months for the
purpose of classification of ity assets and liabilities as current and non-current,

16. Segment Reporting
segment as per Ind AS 108 '‘Operating Segments’. tlealthcare services include various patient services detivered

The Company's business dctivity primarily falls within a single gecgraphical segment.

i
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Jaypee Healthcare Limited

Note No 4 :- NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2018

Particulars Computer Software Total

Gross Block (Cost or deemed cost) -

As At March, 31 2017 76,80,021 76,80,021
Addition - -
As At March, 31 2018 76,580,021 76,80,021
Amortization and impairment

As At March, 31 2017 28,25,302 28,25,302
Charge for the year 15,36,004 15,36,004
As at March 31,2018 43,61,306 43,61,306
As at March 31,2017 48,54,719 48,54,719
As at March 31,2018 33,18,715 33,18,715




Jaypee Healthcare Limited
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2048

Hote Mo
. Particulars As at March, 3! 2018
5 Other Financlal Assets
Unsecured

Security Deposits with Govt. Authorities
Security Depaosits with Others

Othar Non-Currant Assets
Advarces Lo vendgaor
Prepaid Rent

Inverntories

Stores and spares
Stock medizal llems
Stock Mon Medical ltems

Trade Recelvables
Unsecured, Considered pocd

Less : Expected credit losses

Cash & Bank Batances
Cash and cash equivalents
Balance wikn Banks
Cheques, drafts on hand
Cash on hand

Deposit Accounts | up to 2 morths)

Bank Balances
Fixed Deposit

Loars And Advances
Unsecured

Advaice 1o athers
Advance to Related Parties

Qther Financial Assets

Security depasit

Interest accrued on fixed deposit with banks
Incorne Accreed Gul not Due

Other Current Assets
SEaf imprest

YAT Input Tax Recetvable
Prepaid Sxpenses
Prepaid dent

Borrowings

Secured

Term Loans {Indian Currency)
Fromn Bank

As a1 March, 31 2017

17,26,569 15,14,876
12,29,229 6.82,653
29,55,7%7 24,97,529_
: 1,56,40,823
1,58.58,66,001 22,02,83,575
1,58,56,66,001 23.59,74,398
7,69,55,470 9,17,57,823
0.15,994 53,05,432

849,71, 464

10,10,63,255

20.99,50,039 13,24,03,884
12,09.95,00) 17,31,69,188)
18,89,55,035 1%,92,34,6%
1,24.90,540 1,%6,49,842
22.02,759 1,50,02,442
a9,78,65% 41,10,562
. 7.11,08 317
1,96.71,946 ~ 5,78,71,163
11,69,01,157 12,95,14,014
11,69,01, 157 12,95,14.016
1,49,21,498 -
10,84,05,539 23,29.15, 464
12,74,27.037 73,79,15,464
1,493,000 +,93,000
11,081,190 8,12,977
12,94,190 10,05,977
17,56.905 13,464,416
. 18,88,738
1,14,21,512 62,587,381
1,85,30,813 16,214,722
3,17.09,230 17144757
5,09,72.14,958 4,73,53,7C, 181

5,09,72,44,958

4,73,53,70,181
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JAYPEE HEALTHCARE LIMITED
MWobe Mo 14 ;- NOTES TO THE FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2018

(i

i)

{in)

fiv}

{v)

Share Capitat

Details of Authonzed | lssued, Subseribed and fully paid share capital

Share Capital

Autherised
Equity Shares of 110/ each
Jssued

Equity Shares of 10/- each
Subscribed & fully Paid up

Equity Shares of # 10/~ eacn fully patd

As ab March 31, 2018

Number

¥

Number

61 G0, 00,00

42,75,060,000

42,75,00,000

6.02,00,00.000

4,27,50,00,000

4,27,50,00,000

60,03,00,000

A%, 79,00,000

42,750,000

As at March 31, 2017

?

6,00,00,00,000

4,27,50,90,000

4,27,50,00.00%

L Total

42,75,00,000

4,27.50,00,000

42,75.00,000

4,27,50,00,000

Reconciliation of shares autstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year as at 31.03.2018

Equity Shares

Equity Shares

Skares Issuec during the oeriod

Particulars As at March 31, 2018 As at March 31, 2017
Number ¥ Number ¥
Shares culstanding at the besinning ol the perod A2,7%,00,000 4,27,50,00,000 432,759,00,000 4,27,50.00,000

Sharet bought back during the perind

Any obher movernent

Shares oulstanding at the end of the period

43,75,00,000

4,27,50,00,000

42,75,00,000

4,27,50,00,000

Termsfrights/restrictions attached to equity shares:

The company has only one class af Eguity Shares ai par value of 290/ por share,

whicn ank pari- passu in all resgects including voting nghts and entitlement to dividend,

In the event of Hguidatiaa, each share casty equat rehts and witl be enstled (o recews gqual amount per share
aul of the rerraining amount avadable with the Company afier making preferential payments

Shares held by the holding company, ultimate holding company and thetr subsidiaries /associates:

42,75%,00,000 Eqguity shares { inchchng beneficial interest for 606 shares) are held by Jaypee Infratech Limited, tae hotdng company,

Detafts of Sharebolders holding more than 5% shares:

Name of Sharehalder

Equity Shares

Equity Shares

As at March 31, 2018

As at March 31, 2017

_Na. of Shares held

% of Holding

Mo. of Shares held

% of Holding

Jaypee irfratech Limited A27500000° Hp

4775G0000"

160

* Beneficial Srterest for 600 shares held by & mdwvidoals traosferred Lo yaypes infratech Limled



Jaypee Healthcare Limited

Note No 15 :- NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED

MARCH 31,2018

Parriculars

“Other Equity

{A) Surplus in the statement of profil and foss
Cpening balance
Prasfa fLoss for Lthe year
Closing Balance

i) Other comprehensive Income

(&) Remeasurement of Defined henefit plan
Opening balance
Addition/ Deduction duniag the year
Clasing balance

Total

As at March, 31 2018

As at March, 31 2097

(1, £7,272.48,421)
{1,02,490,80,479)

164,18, 37,957
{1.12,74,20,464)

12,79,61,28,900}

{1,77,22,48,421)

(9,70, 796) {(12,11,135)
11,353,668 2,40,339
1,82,872 (9,70,796}

12,79,61,46,028)

{1,77,32,19,217)

W
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a :-The Term vaan rom Yes Bank lec cons rbium Danks for Faomily of s, 325 crores o secured by 1] Brst
Pary Passy Chatee oy way of equitable mortgage on the Land B Building of the Pnase-| Project along with
all butleings anch st tures thes cen alangwith sovatle Fixed assets of the Prajecy, (i) secend charge on
all the current assers] bath sresent & iuture), (1) pledee by Holding Company ('L of 3% of pad ap
ecuity capital of the comgany 1 favor of lender during the tenor ¢f loan,iivi Mon Dispoasal undertaking {or
21% of pa«d up equity capitat of the Company { other Lhan pledged <haseholding), (v Unconditional &

Irrevocable Personal Guarantee of M Maro) Gaur,

e The Teron Loan -0 from Yes Baak fo- faciliy of Rs, 10C Cr, 1s secired by (1) Extzasen of charge on 29
acres of JPSI {taypes Sports Internatianal Limited) commercial land 4 S0Z fowned oy JAL {Jalorakash
Assaoiates Limnuedy post merser and cxclostvely charged o YEL) (sabject to comgliance under Sect-on 185

o Compares act 2013).

¢ i+ The Ters woan -1V from Yes bank for faclty of ks, 7% Cr. 15 secused by {1 first pan-passu charge by
way of registered maortgaged on the rand & Binlding of Mowda Hosprial ; (i} Fiwest Panepasso charge on all

Lo thovable Fixed Assets of the Nowda Hosoital (bota present & future] (s Second Par-pasia Chuargs an all

the Cuirenl Assets of the No-ca Hospizal (botk present & foture} v unzonditional and irrevocable
Parsunal Guaraates of Mr, sanra) Gaur 03 redaain valid dunmg the tenor of the faciities (v] Extension of

charge or Pledee on 91% of the equity capital iniuscd in Howea hioimial of we berrower,

d .« The Term Loan -1 (rom Yes Bank for Tacmity of Ry 300 Coo Is socured by (1) Fust pari-passu charge Ly
way of mortgage on laad and tulding at 205 bed tertiawy care aospital in Bulandsnahar and 3 84 bed
secardary care nospital in Anepshanr{hew Projectsi, i) First can-passu cnarae by way of bypothecation
on all moveabte fizec assets ictudhng, but not Lmited Lo medical eguipment and clther movable Taed
assets of Lhe new projecis, sath present and fetuiz (g dnconditional and ir-evocsble corparate
Guaramee of fayeee tnfratech Limnted. vy Une andinonal and rrevocable Persenal Graranise of Mr.
wanoy Gaus (v Pledge of 30% of the paid up equity capital of the 3orrowses by addiienat promoter
sharebolding 1r the borrower such that YEL has 30% share pledsed exclusively 1n s favor ncluding the
shares already pledged to YR under credit facilities sancbiened lor daypee Medical Centre, Nowla inder

Term Laan .

e - The Term Loan from MBFCs (SREN Equipment Finarce Linntod) s secuecd by way of first Jexctlusive
charge of medical cquipment of ¥ 72,11.20 000/~ and secusity of holding company Jaypee Infratech Lie
{IILY oy way of morteage o property sizuaked at willoge Tappal, Tehsil-koao, Dt -aliwarb L, P)
acmeasunng 7,383 Hectares. Repayatile ia 39 moailly stroctured wostzllments feom 08,09,.2014 to

03.04.2097

Other Financlal Liabilities
Seounty Deposit

Provisfons

Provision Far Fmployee Benefit
Cratusty

tegve Encashnmens

Other Nen Current |iahbil{ty
Deffered Reyvenuz-Hon Corent
Jdeifered labliby

Borrowing
From Barks (Worklng Capital Loan)

10,49,660 9.30,963
10,49,66C 9,30,963
1,19,67,283 83,12, 765
4,23,34,247 1,01,70,773
__1,43.01,530 1,86,83 549
5,431,933 7,90,847
13,17,36,458 4,76,82, 75
13,23,80,394 4,84,71,191
49,56,77,601 49,11.63,2%4
49,56,77,60° 49,13 65,154

The wortong capital loac from Yes Bank ‘or faoihity af As. 50 crores secured by () Exclusive charde on 2
Acres of Land adjoiming Jaypee Medcal Tentre, Neda providing munimem secur-ty cover of 19X {n}
secand Pan Fassu Lharge by way of Equitable Morigase on bae Laag & Butiding of the Bihase-l #ocject (50
Bed rmultissgenahty basptal in village Sheahpur Banger (Sector-128), Motda, Tsit Gautars Budh Magar
[Phase-1) along with all tinldings and struciures taeresa gpprox, S acres. (1) Fizst pas passu chargs on
the all the current assets of tag Jaypee Medical Centre, No-da awned sy bormowar (aoth prosent ane
fuluze), v} Secend Pas Passu chavge on Movable fixed assols (both present and future)] of Jaypee Medical
Ceatre, Mada. iv] Ixtension of Pledes of 915 ¢f the gasd-up equity capital of the Borrower ot all imes
during the tenor of the facdity, (vi} Uncorditional ang Irrevocable Personal Guarantec of M. Manoj Gaur.
(vh) Unconditionat and irrevocable Corporate Guarantes of Jaypes infratech Limited to rermain valid bitl

ke tenor of the facilitics.,
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Trade Payables
Dues to Micro and Smal! enterprises

Dues o other than Micro and Small cnlerprises

Other Financial Liabilities

Current maturities of long term debr;
Security deposit

Book overdiaft

nterest Accrued & Due

interest Accrued But Mot Due

Due ta Srafl

Expenses payanle

Capital Suppliers

Provisions

Provision For Employee Benefit
Gratuity

Leave Envashment

QOther Current Liabilittes

Advances from Custamners

G5T Payable

Service Tax Payanle

TDS Payahle

EMPLOYEES CONTRIBUTION TO E51 PAYABLE
Oeffersd Revenue-Currenl

Exprenses payable

Other curreat Dabilities

76,93,99,930

76,98,90,930

60,10.02,248

T T 60,10,52,248

9,75.00,000 3,25,00,050
1,50,000 -
6,37,74,337
1,43.87,284
5,74,83,821
1,76,13,364 60,01,669
8,82,14,631 15,07,23,608
1,50,65.37,865 11,03,17,648
t,86,56,50.30" 79,55,42,525
1,57.059 13,322
11,01,954 5,67,773
12,61,013 5,01,695
43,79,155 3,12,63,510
V7.42,042 .
. 72,368
1,63,45,402 3,18,24,386
36,88,625 34,93,178
1,46,714 1,465,714
2,63.02,978 6,67,40,155




Jaypee Healthcare | imited

Mote 1o Profit and Loss for the peried ended March, 31 2018

Mole
Ha.

Farticulars

For the perfod ended 31
Mareh 2018

For the perind ended 31

Marck 2017

£h

it

a7

8

9

k)

Rewenue from Dperation
Revonae from Hospital
Revenuc from Pharmacy

Dther nceme

Interest income from FOR
Sale OF Scrag
riscollaneaus Incame
ettt Income

Parkin? Income

ke Incame

Cost of Sale
Conspmptian af Medical [tems
Pharmascy Sale

Empinyee Berelit Expenze

Salary, Wages, Bonus anc other Lenehils
Contahulicn to Providernt und & other fond
Stall Wellare Experses

Firance Cost
Interest an Yerm Loan
Qtker Finance Charaes

Depreciation and Amortization cxpense
Depreciabicn on Tangtle Assets
amgriization of Intangible Assers

Other cxpenses

voctar’s Fees

vife tme expected credil lasses
Consultancy & Advisory Charges
flectricty, Power & Fuel Expenies
*louse Keepng Lxgenses

Security Servce Expenses

Rates It Naxes

Traveine & Canveyance Expenses
Frostage @ Telephone txpenses
lnsurance Charges

vemzles Runcing it Maintenance
Printing & Stationery

Office £inenses

Repair & Maintenance

Marketing & Business Promotion Fupensey
Aueht Fce

Misc Expenses

Bank Cnarges

Outsourced Fathlab Expenses
Patient Catcning Expenses
Manintenene e Charges - 55

Loss on Sale/cisposal of Ieed 25sets
Fertal cxpenses

Earangs Per Share in accordance with Actounting Stancard [Ird AS 33] for the

pericd ended an 31.03,2018

Wel Profe after Tax

Weighteo average number of Fquity Sharis ab the end of the pengd

Basic & diluted Earnirgs por share(3)
Face Value per Share(?)

7,50,28,93,97%
13,87.81,11¢

1.84,03,82, 140
11.37.70,441

2,64,10,75,00

1,96,01,52,582

1,31,50,435 1,17.15,870

11 50,772 8,687,136

2,63,433 862,811

47,700,413 34,07,055

34,65, 166 23,63,646

3,09,28,968 28,141,472

5,37,25,206 2,19,29,593

55,15 87,404 47,21,75.74%

8,44.75,063 7.16,75,061

=5 64,60,63,557 49,40,50,811
A2,27.40, 391 38,18,24 68,

26419367 187,21 ,622

£4,59,295 5C.56,474

. 45,74,49,053 40,58,00,779

40,32,10,024 55,23.34,648
67,93,714 1,11,63,085
60,99 63,718 56,15,47,733
34,76,44 699 A9,10,5/,3%9
1334004 13,581,304
34,91,80,703 15,24,68,664
67,5 61,076 45,90, 34, 342
78,25.815 60,869,142
3,96,20,993 3,44, 00, 384
13,23,07.711 11,314,800, A8
13,6%,77,570 1%,0%,88,65
2,5%,53,246 £,594,23,440
e n 00 A6,64, 288
1,57,00,150 TH2.64.435
42,4% 407 70,% 171
78,859,503 98,9 625
244,145,514 449,03 913
1,78,12,005 1,471,601, 767
58,586,104 11,591,139
7,49,10,408 £,35.90,763
3.09,33,815 21 42,77 A1)
4,753,000 2.47%,00)
14,938,149 4,084,551
1,11,60,859 738,290
2,14,58,186 1,97,52,479
4 172,h4,858 4,02, 29,144
£,74,76,900
1.07,46,718 .
1,46,50,578 16,44, 722

1,65,62,27,727

1,29,36,35,052

1L.02.29,26,811)
42,75,00.000
{2.3%)
10

(331,71 80,1251
42,73 00,000
(2.64)

19



NOTE M0O. 33 Contingent Liabilities & commitments not provided for:

¥ k4
Particulars o _ March 31,2018 Mareh 31,2017

Contingent Liabllities :-
a) Dutstanding letters of Credit {inciuding Foreign LCs) {Margin Money
Current Year: Nil, Previous Year: Mil) 46,51,73% 3,27,27.872
b) Bank Guarantees 32,00,000 32,00,000
Commitrments :-
d) Estimated amaunt of Contract of mobile applicatian remaining to
be executed (Het of advances) 9,27,850 8,67,350
d) Estimated amount of Contract remaining to be executed on Capital
Account (Met of advances)

50,64,i00

NOTE HO. 34
Company started OPD operations at Jaypee Hospital, Chitta from 15t Cetober 2016 & trial run of IPD operation commenced irom

June2017. Incidental expenses (net of revenue} relaled Lo other departments were shuwn as pre-operative expenses in Capital Work
In Progress till that date. '

During the year, company commenced full fledeed operation w.e.f. 15t January 2018 and Incidenial expenses (net of revenue)
related to other departments showa as pre-operative expenses in Capital Work In Progress till 315t December 2017 were capitalised by

atlocating propcrtianately on the cast of major fixed assets capitalised as on thal date.

MOTE MO. 35
in the opmon of Board of Directors the assets, other than fixed assets and non-current fnvestments, have a value on
realization in the ordnary course of busingss at least pgual te the amount at winch they are stated In the 8alance Sheet.

NOTE NO. 36
{a) Frovdent Fung  Defined contribution #an.

All employees are entitled 10 Provident Fund Benefit as per law. Amount debited to financial statements is  2,11,96,334/- during the
year (Previous penod 1,75,26,095%/ ).
i) Ihe Liabitity for Gratuity 1s provided on the bass of actuanal valuation made at the end of current period. The actuarial

valuation 1 made oo Projecled Unit Credit method as per Ind AY 19,

() Provision has been mace for Gratuity and Leave Encashment as per actuarial valuation as below |Previous year figures are
mentioned in brackets) :

The Summarized cosition of defincd benefits recoemzed Balance Sheet 15 as under:

S.Ma._ __ Particulars 2017-18
Gratulty Leave

= .t Engashment__

Expenses recognized as Incidental Expenditure During Construction
up te 315t March Z018.

1. Current Service Cost. 44,30,612 52,42,109
. {37,19,756) 149,07, 365)
2. Interest Cost 6,28,138 7,581,933
{3.75,309) {5,55,308)
3. Employee Contribution - B
- £}
4, Actuanal (Gams)/Losses -11,53,668 91,140
: - i- 2,40,3391 [1,79.777]
5. Past Service Cast - b
== N _ {-) i-)
f. Beneiits Pad -3,26,830 -31,33,247
R - ) (19:45238)
7. Total Expenses 35.75.252 27.99.655
38,54.726 36,97,192
1}
Net ssset/ (Liability) recognized in the Balance Sheet as at 31st
(March 2018, .

1.  Fresent Yalue of Defined Benefit Obligaticn. 1,21,24,342 1,34,38,i01

) 1,21,24,342 1,34,38,201
2. Tair Value of Plan Assels . i
(-1 {:}
3. Unfunded Liabality fprovision o Balance Sheet (1,21,24,342) -1,34,38,301




Related Party disclusures, as required oo terms of "IND A% 247 are 2iven below:

. |:85.46,090) i 1,06,38.546}
4. Het Asset/ (Uatnlity) as al March 31, 718 | 1,21,24,342) [1,34,38,201)
— o i-85,46,0%0) {1,06,18.4546)
mn
Change in Obligation during the year ended March 31, 2018, - | |
1. Present value of Defined Beneht Obligation at the beginming of the B R 1SR T AT T
vear. | {69,41,354)
2, Current Service Lost, L 5_2,42, 103
_ G (49,07,365)
3. Interest Cost i 7,81,93]
- (-} {5.55,308)
4. Setilement Cost - -
—_ = -} i-}
5. Past Service Cost. o 5
o (- 1-i
6. Re-measurements . -91,140
£} i1,79,777)
7. Actuanal (Gains)/Losses . :
-] :
8. Benefil Payments . -31,33,247
(-} { 1945258)
9. Fresent Value of Defined Benefit Oblization at the end af the year, - 1,34,38,201
_ 1-) {1,06,38,546)
v Change in Assets during the year ended March, 2018.
1. Plan Assets at the bezinning ol the year.
A ] -0 t)
2. Assets acquired on amalgamation in previous year. v .
-] (-}
3. Settlements . _
= = — = - = () (-
4. Expected return on Plan Assets . '
. i i)
5.  Contribution by Cmoloyer E .
[ = = ! -}
6. Actual Benefit Pard r :
B -3 )
7. Actuanal Gains / {Losses) . -
{3 (-}
8. Plar Assets at the end of the year L -
-} (-]
9. Actual Return on Flan Assets . - i
_ y Q) -}
L]
v, Assets/Liabilities o
L As an [ 31.03.2018] 31.03.2017|
o Gratuity -
A P20 (C} 1.21,24,342 85,46,090
B _ B Plan Assels o _ .
¢ Net Assels/ (Liabilities) -1,21,24,342 {85,46,090)
) Leave Encashment
o A PBO {() | 1,34,38,201 +,06,38.546
B |Plan Assets - 5 .
 C Het Assels/iLiabilities) (1,34,38,201) 11,06,38,546}
V. Enterprises best estimate of contribution diiring next year : '
i) Gratuity Z 651,09,197
1) Leave encashment 2 46,77.873
Vil Actuarial Assumptions
n hscount, Rate 7.80%
(I Mortatify A5 per ALY (2006-00)
iy lurnover Rate
- Up Lo 30 years i%
- 31 to 44 years %
- Above A4 years 3%
{1V Future Salary Increase 5.5%
MOTE NO.37



- Relationships (Related party relationships are as identified by the Company and relied upon by
the Auditers)

2. Ultimate Helding Company @ Jaiprakash Associates Limited (JAL)
b. Holding Company : Jaypee Infratech Limmted (JI0)

c. Fellow Subsidiary Companijes;

{13 Binln Jayoee Cement Limited (JV subsidiary of JAL)

{271 thmalyan Expressway Limited isubsidiary of JAL)

(31 Guiarat Jaypee Cement & Infrastruciure Lirmnited [JV subsidiary of JALY
(4] taypee Ganga Infrastructure Corparation Limited {subsihary of JAL)
{5 Jaypee Agra Vikas Limited {submsidiary af JAL)

{6} Jaypee fertibzers [t Industnes Limited [subsidiary of JALY

i7) Javoee Cement Corporation Limated {subsidary of JALY

{8} Himalyaputra Aviation Lumited (subsidiary of JAI'}

{9 Jaypee Assam Cement Lirnrted {subsidiary of Jal)

{10y Jayperinfrastructure Development Limited (new name of Jaypee Cement Cnckel {India) Limited w.e f,
£1.02.2017 (subsidiary of JAL)

{11} Jaypee Cement Hockey (Indwa) Limited (subsidiary of JAL)Y

(12) Jarprakash Agn Imtiatives Company Limited {subsidiary of JCCL)

{13) Yamuna Expressway Tblhng Limited (new name of Yamuna Cxpressway Talling Prwvate Limited w.e f
05.04.2017, which again is the new name of Jaypee Mining Yentures Pnvate Linited w.e f 24.93.20070)
{Subsidiay of JM w.e.f 25.03.2017 only).

{14) Himachal Baspa Power Company Limited ceased to be subsidiary of JPYL w.e.f. 08.09.15.

{19) Jaypees Litar Bharat Vikas Private Limited (JUBVEL) (JY Associate Co. till 25.07.17. It became wholly owned subsidiary of
JEIL [hence of JAL alse] w.e.f. 26.07.17)

{186) Kanpur Fertilizers & Cement Limited (JV Associate Co. till 25.07.17. It became subsidiary of JUBVPL (hence of JFIL f JAL
also] w.e.f. 26.07,17)

[17) Japrakash Power Ventures Limited {JPVL) ceased (o be subsichary of JAL w.e.f. 17.02.7017.
{18) Jaypee Powergnd Limited {JV subsidiary of JPVL) ceased to be subsidiary of JAL w.e.f. 17.02.2017.

{19) Jaypee Arunachal Power Limited {JV subsidiary of IPYL) ceased to De submichary of JAL w.e.f, 17.02.2017.

{20} sapgam Power Generation Campany Limited (subsidiary of JPVL) ceased to be subsidary of JAL w.e.f.
17.02.7017.

i21} Prayagraj Power Generation Company Limited fsubsidiary of J?VL) ceased to be subsidiary of JAL w.e.f.
17.02.2047.

122}
Jaypee Meshalaya Power Limited (subs:chary of JPYL) ceased to be subsidiary of JAL w.e.f, 17.02,1017.

123) Himachal Karcham Fower Company Lumated) (subsidhary of JPVL) ceased 1o be sudsidiary of JAL w.e.f,
17.02.2017.

d. Associates Companies

(1} Jaiprakash Power Yeatures Limited (JPYL) iw.e,f. 18.02.2017, 1L became an Assoc:ate Company w place of
fellow subsidiacy of laypee Healthcare Limited).

{2) Jaypee Powergrid Limited (JV Subsidiary of JPVL) (w.e.d. 18.02.2017, it became an Assoniate Company in place
of fellow subsidiary of Jaypee Healthcare Limited).

{3} Sangam Power Generation Company Limited (Subsichary of JPVL) (w.e.f. 18.02.2017. 1t becams an Assceiate
Company in place of fellow subsidary of Jayoee Healthcare Limited).

{4} Prayagraj Power Generation Company Limited [Subsidiory of [PV )fw. e f. 18,02, 217,11 hecame an Assogate
Company in place of fellow subsidiary cf Jaypes Healtheare Lumited).

(5) Jaypee Meghalaya Power Limited (Subsidiary of JPYL)w.e.f. 18.02.2017 . 1t became an Associate Lompany
place of fellow subsidiary of Jaypee dealthcare Limited).

{&) Bina Power Supply Limited (Formerly known as Himachal Karcham Power Company Limited w.e.f,
18.09.2M50w e f. 18072017, it becames an Assogiate Company w alace of fellow sebuadiary of Jaypee
Healthcare Limited}

{71 MP Jaypee Coal Limited (JV Associate Co. of JAL)

(8} MF laypee Coal Fields Limited [JY Associate (o))

{9} Madhya Pracesh Jaypee Mincrals Limited 1V Associate Co. of JAL)

{10} Jaypee Infra Ventures (A Private Company With Unlimited Liakality) (V)

{11} Jaypee Development Corporation Limted (2DCLY (Subsidiary of s1%¥)

{12} andnra Cements Limited (subsidiary of JDCL)

{13} JIu Information Technology Limited {JILIT) {Subsicary of JIV)

{14} Gaur & Ham Limited (Subsidiary of JILIT)

{1%) Jaypee International Logistics Company Private Lirmted (ubsidhary of JIV)

{163 Tiger Hills Hubiday Resort Private Limited (subsidiary of JGCLI —
{17 RFEJ Minerals Private Limited (RPJMPL) 8z
(18} Sarveshwiard Stone Praducts Private Limited (subsidiary of RP2MPLY

(1%} Rock Sotid Cement Lumited (subsidiary of RPIMPL) |
{20} Sencbhadra Minerals Private Limited |




{e)

Transactions carr

{21} indesign Enterprises Provate Linsted (1EPL) (subsidiary of V)

{22y Anvi Hotels Private Lirmted (Subsidiary of JIV){Dissolved w.e.f. 16.07.2016)

{23 ibanshouwrmne Lumited jSubsidiary of 1EPL w.e.f 11.01.2016)

(24} Jawprakash Kashrmir Energy Limiled [ jontly conteatled by Shri sano) Gaur, Sunny Gaur i thedr relatves),

{25 Yamuna Expressway Tolliag Private Lianted (asw name of Jaypee Miniag Venture Private Limited w.e.d.
24,03.2007% controlled by Shn Sueny Gaur & Shn Sunil Komar Sharma).

{26) Ceekay Estates Private Lymited [ronirolird Dy relatives of Shri Mano) Gaur,Shri Sunny Gaurk Smt, Rekha Mixit).

{27) Bhurm Estate Developers Private Limitec jcontrolled by relatives of Shr mManci Gaur,5ori Sunny Gaurf Sme.
Rekha Dint).

(28) Jaypee Jan Sewa Sansthzn (Mot Zor Proft Private Limited Campany) icontrolled by relatives of Shri Manoj
Gaur, 500 Sunny Gaurd Smt. Rekha Dixit),

(29} Dnxit Holdings Private Lirmtec (DHPL) ($MP based Associate Co.) (conticlled by relatves of Shri Manaj Gaur, Shri
Sunry Gaurg Smt. Rekha Dixit).

{30} JC World Hospitality Frivate Limited {contralled by relatives of Shei Manoj Geur,Shri Surny Gaurfy Smt. Rekha

Dt ),

{31y JC Wealth & lnvestments Private Linuted {contratled by relatives of Shi Manej Gaur,Shn Sunny Gaurk Smi.
Aekha Dixat),

(37} CK World Hospitatity Private Limited {Controlled by relatives of Shn Mano) Gaur,Shr Sunny Gaurlt Smi. Rekha
Dixit).

{33} Jaiprakash Exports Private Limited {controllee oy relatives of Shrn Mano) Gaur,Shri Sunny Gaur Smi. Rekha
Dixit).

(34) Pac Pharma Drugs and Chermicals Private Limited (controlied by relativey of Sho Mang) Gaur,Shri Sunny Gawrl
Smi. Aekha DHxith
{35) Think different Enterpnises Private uimited (controlled by relatives of Shin manoy Gaor & Smt. Rekha Bixat),

{36) 3. Jaypee Arunachal Power Limited {V Subsidiary of JPVL)w.e.f. 18.02.2017, it became an Associate Company
i place of fellow subsidiary of Jaypee Healthcare Limited).

{37) First Lyght Estates Private Linuted {contralled by relatives of Shri Manoj Gaur,Shri Sunny Gaur& Smt. Rekha
Dixit ),

Key Managerial Persannel;

111 ShoSunny Gaur, Managing DMrector (w.e.f, 19.04.2014)

{#] Smt. Rekha Dixit, Whaole-time director (w.e.f. 25.02.2015)

137 Sha Malyawant Passi, Chiel Finanoal Officer (w e f, 04.01,2017)
(4] Ms. Dvya Yadav, Company Secelory (w.e.f, 12,12.2017)

ted out with refated parties referred io zbove: (in )

Nature of Referred in {2) above Referred in (b} Referred in (¢} Referred in {d) Referred in (e}
Transactions R _above above above above
Recel ptsmcome B
Share Application
Morey received
Expenditure I
Corntract Expenses £,74,7€,900 Y7,41,592
(1,34,24,155) {10,22,99,581)
Cement/Goods T
Pur:_naspsflT . 2,55,48,168
Services, supply &
Installation
| | waszaemy)
Advertisernent 7.18,04,603
— — W {2,59,79,312)
Others 11,086,597, 469 1,40,00,50,000 1,69,86,602
19.76,59.419)| B - 117,60,239)
Project Transier -
Outstanding - R .
Receivables o }
Advance Payment {-} ‘ : |
{-) -72,61,37.932] _
Payables I
Creditors 11,74,79,303 9,53,93,662 6,83,02,240 18.05,978 |
16,60.29,634) 122,59,29,580) 6,65,50,199) (4.61.429)

1 Previoys Year figures are given i arackets,




a. Earnings in foreign Currency :

' Year ended 2017- Year ended
Particulars | 18 | 2016-17
Patient Receipt o 35.49,51,197| 17,19,63,033
b. Expenditure in Foreign Currency : . _
Year ended Year ended
Particulars 2017-18 2016-17
Finance Charges - LY EE _10,11.08%
\Patient Refunud B o 44,53,856 63,03,353
IC.F value of import of Lapital Goods - 12,82,720 2.21,379

NOTE NO. 38

There 15 net Deferred tax assets however, the provision for net Deferred Tax Assets for timing difference has not heen created as a
matter of prudence as the company believes thal i view of virtual uncertainty of future taxable income agamnst which reversal of

such deferred tax can be made,

NOTE NO, 39

As per the information avallable from the Management Lhere are no Small Scale Industnat Undertakings to whom the Company owes

mare than % 1 Lakh outstandwng Sor mare than 30 days as on 31st March 2018.

NOTE NO. 40

As per the information available with the company, the company has no dues to micro & Small Ertorpnses durnng the period ended

315t March 2018 |

NOTE NO. 41
ia) All the figeres have been rounded off o the nearest rupee.,

b) Previous year figures have been reworked/regrocped/rearranged wheraver necessary ta confrom to those of current year.

Note No. -42 Capitdl Management
{A]) Risk Management

The Company manages its capital to ensure that Lhe company will be able to continue as going concerns while maximising the return
o stakeholders through the optirmization of the debt and equity balance.

The Company s nyk management committee reviews the capital structure of the Company on a semi-annual basis. 45 part of this
review, the committee considers the cost of capital and the nsks asscoated with each class of capital. The Company monitors cagstal
on the basis of following geanng ratio, which)s net debt divided by total capital plus debt.

Geraring ratto
The gearing ratio at end of the reparting peniad was as follows

|Partciulars

As at March 31,
2018

As at March 31,
2017

Debt*

5,69,04,22,559

5,2%,92,35,435

Cash and bank balances Oincluding cash and bank balances na disposal

13,65,73,103

18,73,85,179

Net debt

5,494,34,49.456

5,07,18,50,256 |

Total Equity
et Debts and Total equity

1,47,88,53,972

2,50,17,80,783

7,03,27,03,428

7.57,36, 31,049

Net debt to debt and equity ratio

78.97%

 66.97%

*Debt is defined as long-term and shart-term borrowings including current matunties and books averdraft
Total equity (as shawn 1n balance sheet) includes 155ued capital and all other cguity reserves.

Hote 43 : Fair ¥dlue Measurement
Categories of financial instruments

As at March 31,

As at March 31,

Financial assets 2018 M7
Measured at amortised cost

(i) Trade receivables - = 18,89,5%,035 11,92,34,696
tin)Cash and Bank balance 13,65,73,103 18,73.85179 |
i) Loans 12.74,27,037 73,79,7h,464
{iv) other financial asseis 42,49,987 32,03,506

45,72,05,162

54,27,38.844

Financial liabilities
Measured at amortised cost

As at March 31,
2018

As at March 31,
2017

(1) Borrowings

5,69,04,22,559 |

5,29,92,3E,435

(i1 Guner finangial labilities
titt) Trade anﬁthr—:r pavables

1,76,91,9%,962

11,72,50,279

76.98,90,910

46,10,52,248

Total

8,22,95,13,45

5,97,75,37,962

[{] Fair ¥alue Hierarchy




This sectign explans the judgements and estimates made in detenminirg the fair values of Lthe financial instroments that are {A)
recogmsed and measured at fair value and {B) measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in financial
statements. [0 provide an indication about the reliaility of inputs used in determminieg fair values, the group has classibed its
fmanaial nstruments into three levets prescribed under the accouating standards.

I he following table provides the fair value measurement Inerarchy of Company's asset and hatnlities, grouped 1nto Level 1 to Level 2
as descinoed below -

Level 10 Quoted (unadiustee) market prices 10 active markets for ideatical assets o1 Latihties.

Fair value measurements

“Valuation
techniqueis) and
__ Paryeulars Fair value as at  Fair value hierarchy k_e\._r_ig&ui{ﬂ___
As at March 31, 2018 As at March 31,
01/

Financial assets e . |
a) Secunty deposit 12,29,129 6,82,693 Level 2 Discounted Cash
flow at 2 discount
| rate that reflects
the company’s
current Dorrownngs
rate al the end of
reporting penod

Financial Liabilities

a) Borrowones 5.19,4?,44,958_ 4.76,78,70,181 Lewel 2 Discoented
esbimated cash
flow through the
expec ted Ufe of
1he borrowings

b} Security deposit 10,49,660 9,30,963 Level 2 Discounted cash
flaw at & ascount
rate that reflects
toe company’s
current borrowings
rate at the end of
cepnrnang penod

The fair values of current debtors, cash & bank balances,loan to relatsd party, seconty depesit to goverment deparment, current
creditors and current borrowings and other finanzial bability are assumed te approximate their carmng amaouats due to the short
term matunbes of these assets and Liabilities,

. - | Carrying value

| As at March 31, As at March 31,
Particulars 1018 w7
i) Financial assets - Current =
Trade recavables o 18,89,55,039 11.92,34,6%6
Cash and cash eguivalents i 1,96,71,946 | 5.78,71.163
Bank halances __ — 11,69,01.157 12.9514,016
Loans 12,74,27 037 23,29,15 464
Mner Financial assels - 12,94.190 15,14,876
ii) Financial liabilities - Current B s [
Trade payables _ 76,98.90.930 €0,10,57,748
Barrowmg S | 49.56,77,601 49,13,65,254
Other Financial tabitities {cthee than curcent maturity of toan 1,76.81,50,30 1‘.,63,19,31”

{ii) Valvation techiniques used to determine Fair value

The Company imaintaias policies and procedures to value financial assets or financial hatilibies usine the best and most relevant data
avartable. The fair values of the financial assets and lambtiss are wncluded at the amount that would be received 1o sell an assct or
paid ta transfer a liability in an arderly transaction between market paruicipants at the measuremeni date,

The following method and assumptions are ysed to estimate fair values:
Ihe Carrying amaounts of trade receivables, trade payables, short terin borrowing,uther Nananaal assets/ Liabilities, ¢ash and cash
equivalents. are considered o be thewr four value , due Lo their short Lerm nature.

Long term tixed-rate and vanable-rate receivables / borrowings are evaluated by tag Company based on parameters sucn as interest
rates, specriic country risk factors, crecit risk and other risk characleristics. For borrowing fair value is determined by using the
discounted cash flow (DOF) method using discount rate that reflects the issuer's borrawangs rate. Risk of non-periormance for the
company s considered to be wmsigr:ficant i valoabion, s



Note 44 ¢ FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Campany’s arincipal financial lHahilht:es compose barrowings, trade and other payabtes. The main purpose of these financial
liabitities 15 to manage finances for the Comoany's operalions. The Company princioal financial asset nciuces ioan |, trade and ather
recewvables, and cash and short term deposits that anse directly from ats operations,

The Company's activities are exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.

Market risk

Markel risk is the rsk that the faw valoe or future cash ilows of a finanoal instrumeat will fluctuate becaus of changes in market
prices. Market prnices compnise three types of risks currency rate risk, wterest rate risk and other price risks, such as equity price risk
and comrmoadity price risk. Financial instruments affected by market nskonclude loans ond borrowings, depesits, investments, and

derivative finanoial instruments,

(a) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk 15 the rsk that the faw value or future cash Hows of o financial instrument wall fluctuate because of changes
market interest rates Inorder tu optimize the Conmpany’s position with regard to intecest income and interest expenses and to
manage the interest rate risk, treasury perferms a comprehensive corporate nteresl rate risk rmanagerment by balancing the
propartion of the fixed rate and floatine rate financial insteuments i ts Latal portioto .

Particulars

Vanable rate borrowines
Fixed rate horrowings
Total borrowings

As at
_March 31, 2018

As at
March 31, 2017

49 56,77,601
5,19.47,44,958

49,13,65,254
4.76,78,70,181

5,69,04,22,559

5,25,92,35,435 |

__{i) The exposure of group barrowngs Lo nlerest rale changes at the end of reporiing penod are as follows:

{11} As at the end of reporting penod, the company bad the lullowing vanable rate borrowongs and interest rate swap contracts
outstanding:

As at March 31, 2018

As at March 31, 2017

Particulars

‘Weighted average
interest rate

Balance

% of total loans

Cash Credit
Limit

Net exposure
‘o cash flow

interest rate
risk

Welghted average
interast rate

Balance

% of total loans

13.93% ~ 49,56,77.601 5.71% 13.91% 49,13,65,254 | 2. 34%
49,56,77,601 49,13,65,254
(3] Sensltivity
Profit/less is sensiiive to higherAower interest =xpense from borrowings as a result of changes 1n interest rates,
- ncrease/ Decrease
Farticulars in Basis Points Impact on Profit before Tax
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2007 March 31, 2018 | March 31, 2017

INR

»50
-50

+50
- 50

24,78,388.01
{24,784, 185.01}

24,56,846.27
124,56,826.27)

(B} Forelgn currency risk

Farengn currency risk is the fisk that the fair value or futore cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes i foreign
exchange rates. The Company does not opecates inlernationally and as the Company has nat obtained any forengn courrency laans and
also dossn't have any foreign currency Lrade payables and foreign recetvables outstanding therefore, the company is not exposed to
any foreign exchange nsk.

{'c) Price Risk

The company exposure 1o equity secunties prce nsk anses from the investments held by company and classified 1 the batance sheet
at faw value through profit and loss. The company does not have acy investments at the curreat year end and previous year which are
held for trading. Therefore no sensitivity is provided.

Credit risk
Credit nisk refers to the risk that o caunterparty will default oa its contractua!l obligatians resulting in financial loss to the Company.
The company has adopted a policy of only dealing with creditwarthy counterparties and obtaming sufficient collateral, where
appropriate, as a means of mutigating the sk of financial Ioss from defaolis. The company only transacts with eatities that are rated
the eguivalent of investment grade and above. This infermation 1s supplied by independent rating zgencies where availlable and, if not
available, the company uses ather publicly available fimanc:al Information and its cwn trading records to rate its majur cuslomers,
The company’s exposure and the credit raumgs of 1ts counterparbies are contwnugusly momitored and the agaregate value of
transactions concluded 15 spread amongst approved counterparhies Credit exposure 15 controlled by counterpany llm\ts that are
reviewed and approved by the risk managemant commttees anally

The average credit period on sales of senvices & voods 19 15-4% days.
Mo nterest is cnarged on trade receivables, | Lo\ /i

Trade recevables may be analysed as follows: " *



—

[Ef_'-ﬂf receivables
Within the credit pericd
1-30 days past due

31-60 days past due
51 50 days past due

dore than 90 days past due

As at March 31,

As at March 21,

- 2018 2097
- | 5,93,247971 27791515
~ 4,00,93.979] 2,22.25,038

i 1,97 60,708 1.14,91,332
4,72,36,106 4,19,50,258

.Ageing

Within the credit penod.
130 davs past due

Expected credit loss

31 60 days past due

£1-90 days past due
More than 90 days past due

Liquidity Risk

18.54,6069

36,45,378

Ligmdity itsk s defined as tae risk Lthat company will not be able ta seitle ar meet ks obbigation on time or at a reasonable pnice. The
Company's abjective 1s Lo af ail imes maintain optimum levels of hguidity to meet 1ts cash and collateral reguuerrents. The
Company’s management is respensible for hguidity, funding as well as settlemeat management, In addinon, processes and policies
reloled o such risk are overseen by senior managemenl. Maragement monitars the company’s net Liguidity positicn through ralling,
forecast on the basis of Fepected cash flows,

Thr table pelow provides details regarding the remaimng contractual maturities of financial liatlities at the reporting date based cn
contractual undiscounted payments:

‘Weighted average
effective interest

Carrying amount

l Particulars _ rate (%) Within 1 year 1-3 years wMore than 3 years Total

5 at March 31, 2018 0 - 1 - - L
lB_erl’OWIngs 13.93% 52,38.65,754 1,28,64,40,49% 4,11.01,77,581 5,92,04,83,334 5,69,04,72,559
Trade payabtes 76,98,90,530 76.,98,90,930 76.,98.90,530
pJther financial bhabilities 1.76,81,50, 301 20,00,000 11,72,50,27%

[Total

3.G4,19,66,485

1,28.64,40,499

—411,21,77,581

Particutars

Weighted average
effective interest
rate (%}

A5 at March 31

6,80,76,24,542

176,91 99,92
8,22,95,13,451

2017

[Barrowings

13.93%

rade payables

|Gther financial

L:abilities

otal

[E—

Within 1 year 1-3 years More than 3 years Totat Carrying amount
B 57,18,65,254 58,25,00,000 4,27 67,723,236 %.38,30,88,490 5.25_,92,35,435_
£0,10.52,748 60.10,52,248 6G,10,52,248
26,70,42,925 . 20,00,000 26,90,47,525 26,79.73,888
1,39,19,60.427 | 58,25,06,000 4,27,87,23,236 6.25.31,83.663 6.172,82.61,571 |




